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WITNESSES

INDEHX

DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS

(There were no witnesses.)
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EXHIBITS

DESCRIPTION

(There were no exhibits.)
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(The following proceedings were held on
March 15, 2012.)

THE CLERK: 2011-GS-32-3506, State wversus Jalon

- Taylor, indicted for attempted murder. He is

pleading to éssault and battery first degree.

2011-GS-32-3399, State versus Jalon Taylor,
indicted for forgery less than $10,000. He is
pleading as charged.

2011-GS-32-641, State vérsus Jalon Taylor,
indicted for possession of stolen goods more than
$10,000. He is pleading to receiving stolen goods
$10,000 or more.

All indictments are true billed and he is
represented by Ms. Galdberg.

JALON TAYLOR,
haying been duly sworn, testified as follows:

AGENT RINSE: Your Honor, Mr. Téylor is on
probation. Here's a violation report, two warrants
and a citation.

THE COURT: Are you Jalon Ted Taylor?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THﬁ‘COURT: I have an indictment that charges
that in Lexington County, on or about July 26, 2011,
with intent to kill, you attempted to kill another

person with malice aforethought expressed or
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implied. 1It's alleged that you fired a handgun at
Nelson Orteze and struck him in the hip.

Upon yéur arraignment on that charge of
attempted murder, it appears that you wish to enter
a plea of guilty to assaul£ and battery in the first
degree; is that right?

DE?ENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I have another indictment that
charges that in Lexington County, on or about or
between thé dates of August 19th and October the
27th of 2010, you received stolen goods,
specifically a 2004 Chevrolet Silverado, valued at
more than $10,000.

Upon your arraignment on this charge, it.
appears that you wish to enter a plea of guilty to
receiving stolen goods $10,000 or greater in Value;
is that correcté

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I have an indictment that chafges
that in Lexington Couﬁty, on or about November the
10th, 2010, you participated in the forgery of an
instrument in writing. 1It's alleged that you had in
your possession 47 counterfeit 20 dollar bills.

Upon your arraignment on this charge, it

appears that you wish to enter a plea of guilty to

i
>
e
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forgery less than $10,000; is that righﬁ?

DEFENDANT: ‘Yes, sir. -

THE COURT: Ms. Goldberg, have you fully
explained to your client the nature and elements of
the offenses, the possible punishment and his
constitutional rights, including trial by jury?

MS. GOLDBERG: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you satisfied'theré's a factual
basis for each pleaf

MS. GOLDBERG: Yes, sir.

THE COﬁRT: Do you agree with his decision to
enter the ﬁleas?

MS. GOLDBERG: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Taylor, today are you under the
influence of any medicine, alcohol, drug or anything
that affects your thinking?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Do you have phyéical br mental
problems that affect your thinking?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: You're clearheaded, you know what
you're doiﬁg?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: When you plead guilty, you give up

important rights, including your right to remain
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silent and y@ur right to a jury trial; do you know
that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: If you wanted a jury trial, you'd
be presumed innocent. The State has to prove you
guilty beyond a reasonable doubt to convict you.
And you will get to see, hear and have your lawyer

cross-examine every witness against you. Do you

‘know all that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: If you plead'guilty, you give up
all of those rights. You give up any defenses you
have. You give up any challenges to evidence and
you admit the charge is true. Do you understand
that? |

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you want a jury trial on any of
these cases?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Listen to the State,
please.

MS. USRY: Your Honor, I'm going to move
through these charges that he's pleading to in
chronological order. Lieutenant Jeff Simmons is

here with the Cayce Public Safety Department. And
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I'm going ﬁo give the facts of this case and he's
going to add a little more to the background of this
case once I've completed going through the facts and
given that, as well as the prior criminal history.

The first offense occurred on August 19th of
2010, that's the possession of stolen goods charge,
Your Honor. Officers responded to a call from a
victim who notified that his 2004 darkvgray in color
Chevrolet Silverado 1500 Z71 bearing license plate
number _ which had been parked in his

driveway, had been taken. He also told officers

‘that earlier that week he had other items from the

car had -- the car had been rifled through and had

been removed from his car.

It was later on October 27th of 2010, that the
Cayce Public Safety Department was advised by
Richland County Sheriff's Department they'd
recovered the vehicle and the driver had fled on
foot. They were able to track down that the
defendant had the car in his possession through some
dry cleaning receipts that were found in the car.
The dry cleaning receipts went back to Clean Care on
Knox Abbott Drivé.

When they spoke with Clean Care, they were

actually able to tell officers that the tickets were
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on Jalon Taylor's account. And, subsequently, they
spoke with the deféndant who admitted that he had
taken the car.

The next incident, Your Honor, that the
defendant's pleading to today is-also with the Cayce
Department. And it occurred on November 10th of
2010, when they executed a search warrant at -
Hopkins Street. fhere were four suspects in that
area when the search warrant was executed. They all
jumped up from a dining room table where they were
eating and playing dominos and sqattered throughout
the residence. Officers apprehended different
suspects.

- At that location, they found drugs and other
items that were charges that arose from this offense
that we're dismissing as part of this plea deal
today, but the pertinent item for this particular
charge is the -- in the forgery charge is the fact
that when Officer Green apprehended the defendant,
he was found with $940 worth of counterfeit 20
dollar bills on the defendant. That is the charge
he's pieading to today.

And then, finally, Your Honor, he's pleading to
assault and battery first degree, which is reduced

from an attempted murder. This occurred on July 26
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of 2011, when officers responded to an emergency
call regarding a male victim who was shot while on
9th Street on Jarvis Klapman Boulevard. This is the
West Columbia Police Department, Your Honor.

Officers responded, made contact with theb
vicfim who was on the ground and moaning, his right
hand down holding his groin area and blood on his
hands. They spoke to the witness who stated he and
the.defendant [sic] were walking down the street
toward his house on Center Streeta He explained
that a black male operating a gray in color Dodge
Neon pulled onto 9th Street from Jarvis Klapman
Boulevard. The male stopped and stated, quote, Who
y'all be? The defendant then affiliated himself as
a West Hill and Blood gang member. »That's when the
defendant in the Dodge Neon pulled out a gun and
fired one shot striking the victim in the groin
area.

The witness was able to tell what direction the
subject headed in. And they found a vehicle
matching the defendant's car's description iocated
on Hart street, which is in Cayce's -- which wés
located in Cayce —~- excuse me -- on Middle Street
unqccupied. The vehicle was located on Middle

street unoccupied.
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They later were able to, let's see, according
to —-- find the car and I believe there were footwear
patterns that led officers to - Hopkins Street in
Cayce. They found the defendant and another person,
Mr. Fred Whiting, located at the residence. The
defendant told officers that he was asleep at that
residence all day since two o'clock p.m. and denied
knowledge of the shooting.

Investigators obtained a statement from the
vehicle owner which placed the defenaant behind the
wheel of that Dodge Neon shortly before the
shooting. When confronted with this information,
the defendant voluntarily came to police-
headquarters and was reinterviewed. The defendant
provided a written statement confessing to the
shooting, and cooperating with family members,
turned over the weapon involved in the shooting.

Your Honor, at present, the defendant has a
prior record consisting of a 2010 trafficking of
crack cocaine and that is the extent of his
convictions at the current time.

We have made contact, I believe, with the
victim in this case. 1It's my understanding they're
incarcerated, in the attempted murder case, at -- in

DJJ in Bennettsville, South Carolina.

11
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As far as the victim on the possession of
stolen goods, I believe the car was returned to him.
And I do not see any notations in the records, this
is a different Solicitor's file, Your Honor, that
indicate that there is restitution owed in that
case,

And Lieutenant Simmons is ready to speak with
Your Honor when Your Honor sees fit.

THE COURT: Yes,vsir.

LIEUTENANT SIMMONS: Yes, sir. I was -- and T
would like to -- I think that the Assistant
Solicitor actually mentioned that he.was identified
by the cleaner's receipts and that he made
statements saying that he was actually in the
vehicle, but we also -- I believe it was by latent
prints that we identified Mr. Jalon Taylor as having
possession of thé vehicle at the time that he fled
from -- in Richland County, or Columbia. I'm not
clear as to which one it was.

On November 10th of 2010, after an
investigation, I conducted a search warrant on the
house at ] Hopkins Street and arrested Mr. Jalon
Taylor along with three other known gang members in
our area. I'd like to say that Mr. Jalon Taylor

represents himself as a Folk Nation gang. member,



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

13

specifically the Hill Top Posse, that's in our city.
And I say represents himself as such because I've
been doing approximately -about a year long
investigation into these people. He was with three
other of the same Hill Top Posse gané members.

He did have $940 in his possession at the time
that we determined was counterfeit money. We

contacted the Secret Service. They interviewed him.

.He admitted to having the money and indicated who he

obtained it from.

He's currently wanted by our jurisdiction
because he was in a car chase. He was a passenger
in a car in a car chase and gave us false

information and hindered our investigation in that.

'So he is currently, as he stands here, wanted by our

jurisdiction.

ﬁe was also recently shot in his hip. 2And I
have information in that that —-- or hip or lower —-
shot in the leg somewhere. And I have information
that that occurred down in Swansea and it was due to
some involvement in drug dealing.

He had been in and around seyeral stolen
vehicles, one of which was a Crown Victoria, which I
have pictures of it at his mother's house and had

seen it there before. And I went to investigate it

13
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up on what they call the Hill Top in the City of
Cayce, the 1400 block of Poplar Street, and
approached the vehicle. And Mr. Taylor was probably
50 yards away and I ‘knew him to be the suspect in
it, so I went to confront him and‘talk to him about
it,_and he denied having any knowledge or
involvement in the theft of that veﬁicle. And,
unfortunately, I was unable to obtain any latents
out of that vehicle tying him to ‘it.

. He rep -- as I said, he repreéents himself as a
gang member. He associates with gang mémbers and
known drug dealers.

Dale Scott, the Assistant Solicitor who was
initially assigned to this case, we have been trying
to get him back in ﬁere for a rule to show cause to
revoke his bond for at least since December 7th.

MS. GOLDBERG: Which he has been to court every
single time and it'é been continued.

LIEUTENANT SIMMONS: Right. It had been
continued. TIt's an ongoing process. And during
this process, he continues to commit crimes. And we
would ésk as -- that we —-- the citizens of Cayce and
the Cayce quice Department would ask that we get
the maximum penalties that we can get possibly on

these charges.
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THE COURT: Anything else from the State?

MS. USRY: Nothing further from the State, Your
Honor. |

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Taylor, do you
admit you're guilty of the receiving s@olen goods,
forgery and attempted -- excuse me -- assault and
battery in the first degree charges that you're
pleading on today?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Has anybody forced you, threatened
you, coerced you in any way to get you to plead
against your will?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Any plea bargains the State's made
with you they hawve to tell me about on the record in

open court or put it in a written plea agreement,

_which is entered into the record, or you lose what

they don't tell us about. Do you understand?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

TEE COURT: Ms. Goldberg, is everything on the
record?

MS. GOLDBERG: Your Honor, I would like to add
for the record, you know, there's no jury heré. And
Your Honor knows how court works and so I'm going to

attempt -- I'm not going to make a big deal of this,

15
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but I'm a little bit outraged at the -- all of the
allegations that were just stated which have nothing
to do with the actual charges and which I've never

even heard of before today. I wbuld ask that Your

:Honor just, obviously when we get to that point,

sentence him for what he's here today for and the
actual facts of these charges. |

But, yes, Your Honor, everything's on the
record. More than I even knew of before is on the
recoxrd.

THE COURT: Well, I was asking about the.plea
agreements. I'm sorry.

MS. GOLDBERG: Yes, sir.

MS. USRY: Your Honor, and I vaguely mentioned
the charges that are being dropped. They're all
listed on the drop charges form, which defense
counsel did get to see. So I didn't put it clearly
on the récord every single charge that's being
dropped, but I can read each one into the record if
Your Honor would like me to. I did not do that.

MS. GoﬁDBERé: I have seen the dismissal form,
so that's okay.

THE COURT: Other than what's on the record,
Mr. Taylor, has anyone promised you anything to get

you to plead?
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DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Are you fully satisfied with your
attorhey?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. .

THE COURT: Is there anything.else yéu want
your lawyer to do on the cases that has not been
done?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Do you have complaints of any kind
against your attorney, law enforcement officials or
anybody who's dealt with your case?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Have you had enough time to meet
with your lawyer and discuss things with her so she
can represent you properly?

DEFENDANT: Yes, éir.

THE COURT: Have you had enough time to make up
your own mind about all of this?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: You have not?

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Do you need more time?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir -- no, sir. No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. I'm confused at your

answer. The question was, have you had enough time

17
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to meet with your lawyer and diécuss things with her
and then I asked you if you had enough time to make
up your own mind about all of this?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you sure?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Assault and battery in the first
degree is a felony. It carries up to ten years in
prison. Do you understand that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Receiving stolen goods is a felony
that carries up to ten years in prison. Do you
understand that?

DEFENDANT : Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Forgery is a felony that carries up
to five years in prison. Do you understand that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: In addition to that, they tell me
yéu're on probation. Do you understand that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And they're attempting.to violate
your probation or have me revoke your probation and
send you to prison on that. Do’you understand?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You'll have to provide a DNA sample
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if you haven't already and your DNA profile will be
put in a central computer registry. Do you know
that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Property crimes are graduated. If
you violate property laws again; you face higher
punishment. Do you understand that?

DEFENDANT: - Yes, sir.

THE COURT: So you'ré facing the possibility of
25 years on these three charges that you're pleading
guilty on. In addition, it appears that there's
some time hanging over your head on -- three years
on the probation matter. Do you understand that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COﬁRT: Are you sure you want to plead
guilty?

DEFENﬁANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Taylor has made a free,
knowing, voluntary and intelligent decision to waive
his rights and plead guilty. He's done so upon the
advice of counsel with whom he's fully satisfied.
There's a factual basis for his pleas.

All right.A Mr. Taylor, they've handed me some
papers indicating Judge McMahon sentenced you for

trafficking methamphetamine ten grams or more, but

19
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less than 28 grams. You were sentenced apparently
in July of 2010. And he gave you a sentence of
three years suspended Qith two years probation.

MS. GOLDRERG: Your_Honor, if I could speak to
that real quick. There's just a little confusion.
The central index states that he was actually
convicted of PWID. And as you know, that
trafficking charge as listed has a three-year
mandatory»minimum, that.probation is inéligible. So
I'm a little bit confused on which of those charges,

but, Your Honor, it was a crack charge and the

. sentence is correct.

THE COURT: Okay. There's a warrant apparently
that was issued in which it was alleged that yoﬁ
failed to follow the advice and instructiocns of the
agent, you failed to report upon your release from
Richland County Detention Center on July the 7th,
2011, failed to notify the agent of a change in
address that was verified in a home visit conducted
by the agent on July 22nd, 2011, in which it was
determined that you no longer lived on Poplar Street
in Cayce. |

It's alleged that you failed to notify the
agent of an arrest on July the 7th of 2011 for

driving under suspension first and second,
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possession of marijuana and alcohol, failing to use

headlights and failing to stop for a blue light.

- It's alleged that you were behind on your money.

It's alleged that you failed to complete substance

abuse counseling by being terminated for failing to

'report to the group session on June the 4th, 2011 .

and testing positive on June 3rd, 2011 for
marijuana.

There's another warrant that was issued
alleging that you failed to follow the advise and
instruction cf the agent by failiné to report when
you were released from the.Lexington County
Detention Center on August 1, 2011.

It's alleged that you were in possession of a
weapon as evidencedlby an arrest warrant and police
incident report of the West Columbia Police |
Department dated July 26, 2011, in-which you were
charged with attempted murder in the shooting of
another individual. 1It's alleged that you failed to
cont -- to report that you had had contact with law
enforcement by being arrested July the 26th, 2011 by
the West Columbia Police Department. |

They recommend a revocation in full and convert
any financial obligations against you to civil

judgments.

21
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Anythiné else on probation?

AGENT RINSE: Judge, Agent Lyons is here and
she may have something.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.

AGENT LYONS: Those were those two warrants.
The only thing that I would like to add, Your Honor,
when the Soliciﬁor‘read his charges, he did have two
additional convictions that were in Richland County
that came from July the 7th of 2011, one was a

possession of marijuana charge and the second was a

~driving under suspension charge. He was convicted

of -both of those in Richland County.

And the only other thing that we would like to
request is that our probation violatidn revocation
run consecutive to his sentence that he receives on
the new charges that he's pleading to.

TﬁE COURT: Okay --

AGENT LYONS: And the only other thing -- I'm
sbrry, Your Honor. The arrest warrant that ends in
0249, when we actually apprehended Mr. Taylor on
that, it did take several agencies to lccate him.
He was only located after his cell phone was pinged
by SLED. |

Due to the weapons and the gang affiliation, we

were concerned about our safety, so we did take
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extra precautions in that apprehension. He in no
way offered to come into the office voluntarily. -

And he has -- was ordered to report biweekly
while we were pending this since we'fe had several
continuations, which I've been aware of and that was
fine. The last time he reported to the office was
February 1lst. It's not included in the violations,
but I just wanted to add that he stopped réporting
the beginning of February.

THE COURT: Ms. Goldberg.

MS. GOLDBERG: Thank you, Your Honor. May it
please the Court.

I've represented Mr. Taylor since, I believe,
around August. Since that time, he was at first
incarcerated, but then he was out on bond and on
probation. He has been on an ankle monitor that
entire time.

He —-- as stated, he has high supervision on
probation where he was supposed to make biweekly
visits. He did not make all appointments he was
supposed to make, but he did make appointments. He
did not abscond. He was behind on payments, but he
did make some payments.

Your Honor, he was'probably negligent in his

participation with probation, but he did not

23
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abscond. And I just want to make thét clear that
there was some effort and there was communication
there.

Your Honor, of all of the offenses he had on
probation, obviously the most serious is these new
charges that we're dealing With today. And for‘thaf
reason, I would ask that that -- any sentence issued
on the probation be concurrent to these that we're
dealing with today.

Your Honor, as to the charges, the Sﬁlicitor
stated that my client admitted to taking the car
involved in the possession of stolen vehicle, that's‘
not true. He never did. He is pleading guilty
today because he was in possession of that car at
somé point in time. That's what he's admitting and
that's what he is pleading guilty to.

Your Honor, as to the aftempted murder, that is
the biggest issue, that's the most serious. My
client tells me that two or three days prior to that
incident, he was actually robbed by someone with a
gun. He did not report that to the police. They
took about $200 in jewelry from him.

At that péint in time, he got a gun that he
found in his grandfather's tool shed or tool box and‘

started carrying it around. He saw these
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individuals that the incident happened with with the
attempted murder. There were some words. And

Mr. Taylor admits and has admitted since early on in
the investigation that he did shoot at them. He
tells me that he did not intend to hit either of
them, he just shot at them, which obviously is not
okay, but.he missed and did hit one of them in the
hip. He is remorseful about thaﬁ, but he does tell
me that he was intending to miss.

Your Honor, we've talked about how the robbery
a couple days prior is not a legal defense. It does
not make something that happened two or three days
later self-defense. We've talked about how the fact
that he did not intend to kill them or injure them
is not completely a defense either. If we had gone
to trial on the attempted murder, we most likely
would have been hoping for a conviction for assault
and battery first degree, which 1s why we're
pleéding here today. He admits that he shot that
individual and it was unjustified.

Your Honor, he has come to court every single
court date he's ever been asked. He's returned my
calls. He's been very cooperative with me.

Your Honor, he has actually a lot of fémily

here today. Standing with me is his godmother,
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Louella Washington. 1In the gallery, we also have

his cousin, LaKesha Richardson; his mother, Amanda

. Jamison; his sister, Tianna Jamison; his brother,

Jerrell Jamison.

Your Honor, I do want to emphasize Mr. Taylor's
age. He's only 19 years old. He does have a high
school graduation behind him. He hés been working
steadily. vHe's worked for Gill Jones, who's a
family friend, who I've spoken to. And he owns
Muscles Concrete. And he tells me that Mr. Taylor
has been working steady for him and doing a very
good job. Mr. Taylor's also worked other places in.
the past including First Care Plus and Mr. Bingo.

He has a girlfriend and a three-year-old son
and was intending to go to Denmark Technical College
for therapeutic recreation, but these charges have
prevented that.

Your Honor, as I stated before, I —-- you're an
experienced judge and I just ask and I hope that
he's sentenced on the charges he's actually pleading
guilty to and not outside allegations and not
outsiae charges.that are irrelevant to what we're
doing here today.

He, as I said, has been very nice, very

appropriate in all his conversations with me. He's
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19 years old. He hasn't been to the department of
corrections. This is going to be a very big
adjustment for him and his family. It'll be a
learning experienée and hopefully something that
will prevent this from happening in the future.

I ask that Your Honor run any and all sentencés
you issue concur -- I mean, consecutive to each
other. I ask that, Your Honor --

THE COURT: You mean_concurrent.

"MS. GOLDBERG: I'm sorry?

THE COURT: You said consecutive.

MS. GOﬁDBERG: Concurrent.v

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. Go ahead.

MS. GOLDBERG: I ask that Your Honor be as .
lenient as you can possibly be given his youth and
everything else discussed today.

I believe his godmother may want to address the
Court.

THE COURT: What'é your name, ma'am?

MS. WASHINGTON: Louella Washington.

THE COURT: Spell youi first name.

MS. WASHINGTON: L-o-u-e-l-l-a.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am, what would you like to
say?

MS. WASHINGTON: Well, I've been in Jalon life

27
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all of his life. I know he hade mistakes, a lot of
them, but he got a good heart. He just loses.it
sometimes.

He's a good worker and a father. He messes
with all my grands, which are his nephews. And I
don't really have problems out of Jay, you know,
he's not disobedient with me. When I talk to him,
he listens and he handles everything that I say to
him, but, you know, kids grow and they get out and
you can't tell them anything, but I know that he
done made a lot of mistakes. And I can't apoiogize
for him. He have to do that hisself. I'just hope
that what you give him is not, you know, so térrible
that he can't come back and further his career and
raise his son.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.

Anything else?

‘MS. GOLDBERG: Your Honor, just that obviously
he's willingly come off the street to admit what
he's done wrong and to accept sentencing. And we
would just ask that Your Honor be compassionate -and
as lenient as youire willing to be.

THE COURT: Do you want to say anything,
Mr.ATaylor?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. Due to the circumstance
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of I just got shot recently two weeks ago and being
in the situation that I'm in, I was thinking about
—— I had a lot of time to think while I been laid
up. And somebody getting shot, that ain't -- that's
your life. You can't move like you want to. You
can't get around like you want to and it's pretty
hard. So I feel remorse.

I went talking to the family, went over,
brought food over, raked the yard. I can't do yérd
work for them due to the ﬁob that I work at.

I just want to be there to raise my son. I
just want -- I want you to have consideration I got
a son that I really want to gét back out there to,
that's about it.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

(Pause.)

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Taylor, if there's
nothing further, I accept your plea. |

Cuff him.

(Pause.)

THE COURT: Mr. Taylor, if you wish to appeal
anything from this proceeding, it has to be in
writing. You ha#e to tell your lawyer so she can
file the notice of aépeal. If, for some reason, you

cannot afford an attorney to appeal, the state can
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appoint one for. you. Do you understand all that?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: There's a very short timeframe in
which to file an appeal. So you make sure you tell
your attorney if you want to appeal anything from
this.

The sentence of the Court on indictment
2011—GS—32—3506, assault and battery in the first
degree, is that you be committed to the South
Carolina Department of Corrections for ten years
plus costs and assessments. You're given credit for
jail time under section 24-13-40, that will be

calculated and applied by the department of

corrections. Restitution is deferred. Pay your

court costs within one year of being released from
maximum incarceration in prison,.

Indictment 2011—GS~32—641, recelving stolen
goods, the sentence is that you be committed to the
South Carolina Department of Corrections for five
years plus costs and assessments consecutive. Court
costs are the same, paid in the same way as on the
other indictment.

Indictment 3399, forgery, the sentence is five
years consecutive. And the court costs are the same

as on indictment 3506 to be paid in that same
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manner.

On the probation violation, I find that you
have willfully violated the terms and conditions of
probation by failing to report as directed on
certain occasions, failing to notify the agent of
contact with law enforcement and with the offenses.
I revoke it in full and run it consecutive. Good
luck to you. |

Any financial obligations that remain on his
probation case are to be enfolled as civil

Jjudgments.

END OF PROCEEDINGS
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CERTIFICATE

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

I, the undersigned, Stacy L. Sheppard, Circuit
Court Reporter for the Eleventh Judicial Circuit of
the State of South Carolina, do hereby certify that
the foregoing is a true, accurate and complete
transcript of record of all the proceedings had and
the evidence introduced in the guilty plea of the
captioned cause, relative to appeal in the Criminal
Court for Lexington County, South Carolina, on the
15th of March, 2012.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin,

counsel, nor interest to any party hereto.

August 17, 2012

. Stacy L. Sheppard, RPR
Circuit Court Reporter



WITNESSES
Cayce Department of Public Safety
Darwin J. Weaver

Law Enforcement.Casg #: 1008208

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

1203782

AHE

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

VERDICT

Forsperson of Petit Jury
Date:

DOCKET NO. 2011653200641

The State of South Carolina

County of Lexington

COURT OF GENERAL ‘SESSIONS
MARCH TERM 2011

THE STATE
Vs,

Jalon Ted Taylor

CDR #: 3467

Indictment for

POSSESSION OF STOLEN GOODS
MORE THAN $10,000.00

§ 16-13-0180

DONALD V. MYERS, SOLICITOR
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT:FOR
) o ) POSSESSION OF STOLEN GOODS MORE
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) THAN $10,000.00
) ' ~

§ 16-13-0180

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on MARCH 2011, the Grand Jurors of
Lexington County present upon their oath:

That Jalon Ted Taylor did in Lexington County, South Carolina, between the:

dates of August 19 and October 27, 2010, unlawfully buy, receive, or possess stolen
gaods, chattels, or other or other property was stolen, such property described as a
.2004: Chevrolet Silverado, and having a value of ten thousand ($10,000) dollars or

‘more, in violation of § 16-13-0180 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as

amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

provided.
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WITNESSES
Cayce Department of Public Safety
J Simmons

Law Enforcement Case #

oS

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

1203809

DOCKET NO. 2011653203399

The State of South Carolina
Gounty of Lexington

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
NOVEMBER TERM 2011

ACTION.OF GRAND JURY

CDR #: 3435

Foreperson of Pelit Jury
Date:

‘THE STATE
Vs,

Jalon Ted Taylor

Indictment for

Forgery Less than $10,000
§ 16-13-0010(A)

DONALD V. MYERS, SOLICITOR
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
o ) Forgery Less than $10,000
‘COUNTY OF LEXINGTON )

) § 16-13-0010(A)

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on November 2011, the Grand Jurors

of Lexington County present upon their oath:

That Jalon Ted Taylor did in Lexington County, South Carolina, on or about November
10, 2010, falsely make, forge; or counterfeit; cause or procure to be falsely made,
forged, or counterfeited; or wilfully: act or-assist in the false making, forging, or

counterfeiting of any writing or instrument of writing, with an intention to defraud any

pefson, to wit: Jalon Taylor did have in his possession 47 counterfeit $20 bills, such

having a value of less than ten thousand ($10,000) dollars, in violation of §16-13-0010

of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 19786, as amended

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

ASSISTANT SOLICITCR




WITNESSES
West Calumbia Police Department

‘Mark Jones

Law Enforcement Case #:

" ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

J034625-°

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

By ’ ;i 3

VERDICT

Forepersoh-of Petit Jury
Date:

DOCKET NO. 2011GS3203506

The State of South Carolina
County of Lexington

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
NOVEMBER TERM 2011

THE STATE
vs.

Jalon T Taylor

CDR #: 3410

Indictment for

Attempted Murder

§ 16-03-0029

DONALD V, MYERS, SOLICITOR
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
o ) ‘ Attempted Murder
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) '
) § 16-03-0029

At.a Court of General Sessions, conv_éned on November 2011, the Grand Jurers
of Lexington County present upon their oath:

That Jalon T Taylor in Lexington County, South Ca}olina, on or ébout July.26, 2011, did,
with the intent to kill, attempt to kill another person with malice aforethought, either
express or implied, to wit: Jalon Taylor did fire a handgun at Nelson Ortiz, striking him in
the hip, in violation of §16-03-0029 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as

amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

provided. P %ﬁﬁ

ASSISTANT SOLICITOR
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTYOF Lexington : .. o

'STATE VS, g INDICTMENT/CASE#: _ 2011GS3200641

) . Jalon Ted Taylor —) A/We: 1203782

AKA: . .. ) DateofOffense: _8/19/2010°

Race: Black _ Sex: M Age: 19 ) S.C.Code § .:_16-13-D180(A)

DOB: B ss B )  CDRCode#: _ 3427

3 Poplar Street - ) 0 ,_.loy’_"
Cayce, SC 29033 ) SENTENCE SHEET nat Jest +han
e SID#: ) #2,000

“*CDL, Yes[] No[J CMV Yes[ No[:l Hazmat:Yes[] No[]

In dispositjon of the said indictment tomies now the Defendant who was. O CONVICTEDOF or XJPLEADS

TQ: RSGIRecewmp, stolen goods value 310, 000 or more

in viclation of § 16- 13-0180(A) _ofthe 8.C..Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3427

X NON-V]O_LEN’_I‘_ [0 VIOLENT []SERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45

w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

The chargeis:  [X] AsIndicted, [“JlesserIncluded Offénse, []Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury, ' (defendant's initials)-
Tgtlgr %’?r is: [5]WithputﬁNagqiia_tfi_ons-'or:Rjecomm’endation, O Negotiated Seritence; [ Recommendanon by the State:

Solicitor "
WHEREFQORE, the Defendant is commited to the
for a determinaté term of & dayshmes . -under-the h derAetotto-orveod—— ren:
amor IO PRy T fime-ef e j-Provided-thatupen.the service-of— —deysimonthafyears-andfor-payment
cﬂ&v——. plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the-balenee-is-suspended-with—probation—foe— -

ponth of and-subiectto [4)

"sséunvxstosemenceon ém{,é B2~ 3{@6, 4 33‘)4;.?&9&6“?%

dlid I'dras fanaar

pre
0 CONCURRENT or

] The Defendant is'to be given éredit for.time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied ~ View-. ©*
by thie State Department of Coirections. 20\0- 532
[J The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to.S.C. Code §17-25-135. 2055

Pursuant to_18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16:25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition,

/ _ SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
lﬂés ESTITUTION: [gd/Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing. [ ]Ordered  PTUP

Total; $ plus 20% fee: $ . daysMours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: _ o Obtain GED 0

(L] Setby.SCDPPPS _ Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.

o : May serve W/E begining'

eciplent: - - Substance Abuse Counseling 0
‘;le;xel; 206 s TS g Random Drug/Alcotiol testing O
- sessmer 6 Fine may be pd. in equal,.consecutive weekly/monthl

© §14-1:211(A)(1) (Cony: Surcherge) 310 SIDO. 0 pmts. of $ pe-Th L€ beginning g Y

§ 14-1-211(A)(2)(DUISurcharge) $100 " § $ o T T _

§ 565 2995 (DU Assessment) $12 3 _ ___ paidto Public Defender Fund .

§ 56-1:286 (DULBreath Test) $25 7§ Other: -M-md‘_tﬁé_b_@mdw—
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 T ' O Qe 65323500

§ 14-1<212 (Law Enforce. Funding) 25 FAR.DO '

§ 14-1.213;{Drug Court’ Surcharge) $150 "§ -

550-21 Il4(BUI Breath Test Fee)- 350 $ . - .

§'56-5:2042(7) (Vehicle Assessment) sS40k 3 O A§p P zf,"gdr?)u;’;%%‘gg fg °aﬂi': o ‘g“s;l’

Proviso:90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) 35 AT durin g probgtion P er

3% t0.County  (if paid in nstallmenits) 3 R

TOTAL Y Presiding Judge Ajl/‘-*-— fa M{

Judge Code: ___ 2252

c Sentence Date: [ 1S . 2el2.

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk '
CourtReporter; d
SCCAR2]17 (03201 l_)



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY.OF Lexington g o 4
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE# __ 2011GS3203399
Jalon Ted Taylor _ —) A/W#H; 1203809
ARA: . ) Dateof Offense: _11/10/2010
Race:  Black S M _ 19 ) SC.Code § ;_16-13-001 0(A)
DOB: SS#: i )  CDRCode#: _ 3436
Afidr:;ss':_ . _ Poplar Street ) O 5- ts
Ciy,State;2ip! Cayee, 5C 20033 ) SENTENCE SHEET and/25 Hne
DL# SID# : oa a{ufﬂl‘cﬁ‘#n
*CDL Yes[] No[J' CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[:] No[] - 0L cour
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was (0 CONVICTED OF or {XJPLEADS
TO: .Forpery /Forgery, value less thas $10,000 ,
inviolationof § 16-13-0010(A) of the 8:C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3436 ,
X] NON-VIOLENT (] VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45
_ ) " w/minor 1st or Lewd Act) A
The chargeis:  [X] As Indicted, [ JLesserincluded Offense, [ JDefendant Waives Presentmerit to Grend Jury. {defendant’s initials)
Thie piet is: |Z{]W1tho ] tN onatlons or Recommendation, = [ Negotiated Sentence, [ Recommendanon by the State,
ATTEST: 7 20 5 / ' R _
% Ao
SC Bar# /Defendant

2011 GS - 32-35Dba Obt] a FRe8ATE
§ 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied \2"5

201065~
~215%

p . :
O { CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
(. TheDefendant:is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code
by the State Department of Corrections.

[ The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.
Pursuant.to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawiul for a person convicted of aviolation of Section 16-:25-20 or 16-25-65 (Cnmmal
Domestic Violence) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or- ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
CORESTITUTION: [] Deferred [] Def. WalvesHearing [ JOrdered  PTUP
Total: § _ plus 20% fee: $ daysfhours Public Service Employment
Paymerit Terms; __ Obtain GED
[J Set by SCDFPPS: Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient; Substance Abuse Counseling ~ [J
*Fine: _ 5 Random Drug/Alcohol testirig 0O
§ 13-1:206 (Assessments 107.5 %) _ 3 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211¢A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) 5100 SO0 O ' pmts. of § beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 3§ $ o - :
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI'Assessmient) $12 7§ —_ paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DU Bréath Test) $25 5 Other: _@m&gﬁb diseXd
Proviso-47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 7§ Aol 6o~ 3L - 26D, -
8§ 141212 (LawEnforce. Funding) $25 T8, 0=.00 4
§ 141 1-213.(Drug Couirt Surcharge) 8150 ~$())5 Q
§ 50-21-114(BUI Bicath Test Fee) $50 3 . - . o
§ 56-5:2042(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca 5 O ‘A‘gppz;".'lequ D or a%‘;%‘g‘;d °".’:r °‘-’C‘i“s;l'
Proviso.90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 55 00 ) 9 /{.14:requires 5500.be paid to Cler
. OV during probation.
3%toCounty (jf paid in mstaﬂments) 5 o
TOTAL $ &0 Presiding Judge . égaA.l.. /0 owslon,s
Judge Code: 252 -

‘Clerk of Court/ Deputy Cleck
Court Reportér: . :

25D
Sentence Date: _ AR [S 2072 ,

-8CCA/217 (03/2011)
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IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

STATE.OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF . Lexington o ‘
STATE ’ VS. INDICTMENT/CASE#: __ 2011GS3203506
_ Jalon T'Taylor AIWH#: 1034625

___Ssi#:m

Date of Offense: _7/26/2011
S.C.Code § : 16-03-0029

CDR Code #: _ 3410

0 "/O’I:f'

SENTENCE SHEET

*CDL Yes[] ‘No[] CMV Yes[] ‘No[] Hazmat Yes| ] No[]

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was ] CONVICTEDOF or XJPLEADS

TO: Assault / Assault & Battery lst'degreef , _
inviolationof § 16-03-0600(C)(1) of the §.C, Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3412
-X] NON-VIOLENT (7] VIOLENT. !:]SERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS(CSC. [J1617-25-45
' w/minor 1stor Lewd Act)
The: 'cﬁarge is: d As Indicted, [Z]ster Included Offénse, [ JDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant’s initials)
The pleais:  [X]Without egotlatlons or Recommendation, [J Negotiated Sentence, [J Recommendation by the State:
ATTEST: o .
A /N 73031 gl ST a(ﬂ;{
Solicitor SC Bar# v/# Defengant Attomeyfor Déféndant. SC Baj
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commitéd to the Eféate Department of Corrections;, [S—County-Detention-Contery

for a determinate térm of [ o 5/FRO
andkm-pay—a-ﬁne-eﬁ-sf > provi

The Defendant is to'be gwencredxt for tune served pursuant to S.C, Code § 24- 13 -40 to be calculated and & apphed

by the State'Départment of Corrections.
[0 The Defendarit is to-be'placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C: Code §17-25-135.

Pursuantto 18'U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domgstic Violence Jto ship;transport,possess,or receive a firearm or' ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

Rss'm'u'non, Deferred [0 Def. Waiyes Hearing [ ]Ordered  PTUP
Total; plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment’ Telms ~ Obtain GED -
[0 Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.

—— May serve W/E begining
Rfmplel_’ﬂ- _ Substance Abuse Counseling |
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcoho] testin,

g

§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5.%) 3 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
8 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100  $/Pb.on pits, of § beginning
§ 14-1 21 l(A)(Z) (PUI Surcharge) $100 3 $ .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 N paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286'(DUI Breath Test) $25 % L7 :
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 &
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 [
§ 1413213 (Drug Court Surcharge) 8150 ;2)5 Lo
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50
§ 56-5-2942(7) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea 3 U Ag’ p:;nted FD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5(SCCIA Surcharge) 85 $5.0V d 12 requires $500 be pald to Clerk.
%"g to.Counfy (if paid in mstallments) 5 kg probation.

TAL.

o . o 1R Presiding Judge W N

Clerk of Court/ Depui lerk ’ Y - Y - Judg_e Code: 1520
Court Reportert=—. P 5 ; Sentence Date: [nﬁﬂc/-} / f , 20/ L

SCCA217(03/2011)
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" County of _\_egyyngyen

FORM 5

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
' F DL E BN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
)

R )
AN v =% 3 APR)IE D 37
Full name and prison numbez {if any) of Applic@t - ) ]

APPLICATION FOR

State of South Carolina POST-CONVICTION RELIEF

INSTRUCTIONS - READ CAREFULLY

= In order for this application to receive consideration by the Court, it shall be in writing (legibly
handwritten or typewritten), signed by the applicant and verified (notarized), and it shall set forth in
concise form the answers to each applicable question. If necessary, applicant may furnish his answer to a
particular question on the reverse side of the page or on an additional page. Applicant shall make clear to
which question any such continued answer refers. -

Since every application must be sworn under oath, an); false statement of a material fact therein
may serve as the basis of prosecution and conviction for perjury. Applicants should, therefore, exercise
care to assure that all answers are true and correct,

If the application is taken in forma pauperis, it shall include an affidavit (aftached at the back of
the form) setting forth information which establishes that applicant will be unable to pay the fees and
costs of the proceedmgs When the application is completed, the original shall be mailed to the Clerk of
Court for the County in which the applicant was convicted.

1. Place of detention 4 e » < 0 v

e NG A0

2. Name and locatxon of Court which imposed sentence

N\ et b el e e eS8
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(c) o B~ AN - Lafs O 6 o - 9

td

The date upon which sentence was imposed and the terms of the sentence:
(a) ren g )51 Aan,10¥F o ‘r\. Dearee t en 2815
(b) '\‘ - 2 pol .50 e P L OTS CRto P -" en ‘. »

(c) A\ g T Three Mears. A o , SD?Es NE - Q

’ Joge “hUE. cor
Check whether a finding of guilty was made: &% 33 et

SN

(a) after a plea of guilty

(b) . after a plea of not guilty

(c) aftera plea of nolo contendere

Did you appeal from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of sentence?
Nea

If you answered “yes” to (7), list:

(@)  the name of each Court to which you appealed:

L. n o
ii. \‘
i M .-
(b)  the result in each such Court to which you appealed: 3‘::'1 % !
i ___*;:E-__Amﬁﬂ_sz&\ L
ii. \ Tt I ;1_1
i, v v O
(c)  the date of each such result: ;

i an J&‘m&_;._ag\fs
i, A
)

iil.

(d)  ifknown, citations of any written opinion or orders entered pursuant to such
results:

1 q nnﬁna VO

ii.

iii.

If you answered “no"” to (7), state your reasons for not so appealing:
(a) N

® Y
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10.

11

12,

13.

(c)

State concisely the grounds on which you base your allegation that you are being held in
custody unlawfully:

(a) by : woionce, ¢ Couase)

()  Soucdooterdd Tea Ay reas¥ed Feom Wreadn & Veg

(c) menk

State conclstly and in the same order the facts which support each of the grounds set out
in (10): '

g; _ﬁm_?gf Ale)

©

Prior to this application have you filed with respect to this conviction:

(a)  any petition in a State Court under South Carolina Law? __ wNe

(b)  any petition in State or Federal Courts for habeas corpus or post-convictions

relief? Na

' () - any petition in the United States Supreme Court for certiorari other than petitions,

if any, already specified in (8)? Na

(d)  any other petitions, motions or applications in this or any other Court? W

- =1
If you answered "yes” to any part of (12), list with respect to each petit_igr?j motien or

aad

application: e : 2‘:3
() the specific nature thereof: -
i. Ny 2 U
iii, i
iv.

(b)  the name and location of the Court in which each was filed:
1. NI
i \ e, _

iii. \

iv.
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11. State concisely and in the same order the facts which support

eachlﬁfﬂﬂﬁé\gﬁauﬂa§1set out in (10):

The Rﬁﬁtﬁﬁdﬁﬁﬁg%igges his Sixth(6th) Amendment Constitution
ALERR LY LLUER

right to efféctive’

iVé“fépresentation of counsel was denied when his
attorney failed to ensure the State adhered to the plea agreement
made to him that served as an inducement for him to plead guilty.
Because Applicant's Counsel did not correct the prosecutions
breach of his plea agreement, his pleas are ihvoluntary.

(Law): In Santobello v. New York, the United States Supreme Court

established that state prosecutors are obligated to fulfill the
promises they make to defendants when those promises serves as in-
ducements to defendants to plead guilty 404 U.S. 257, 92 S.Ct. 495,
30 L.Ed.2d 427 (1971). Recognizing the fundamental rights that a
defendant forfeits when he pleads guilty, the Supreme Court made
the following statements:

This phase of the process of criminal justice, and the adjudicative
element inherent in accepting a plea of guilty, must be attended by
safeguards to insure the defendant what is reasonably due in the cir-
cumstances. Those circumstances will vary, but a constant factor is
that when a plea rests in any significant degree on a promise or ag-
reement of the prosecutor, so that it can be said to be part of the
inducement of consideration, such promise must be fulfilled. Id. at
262, 92 S.Ct. at 499, 30 L.Ed.2d at 433.

Applicant's case is similar to the facts of Santobello insofar
as the prosecution agreed to abstain from making sentencing recom-
mendation in exchange for his ﬁlea, but breached{the plea agree-
ment by recommending the judge impose the maximum sentence allowed.

See: Sentencing Sheets for all offenses Applicant plead guilty to;

Page 1 of 3.
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also, Tr. pg. 12 line 10- pg. 14 line 25. Here, the record clearly
demonstrﬂE&iJEi[ktate breached Applicant's plea agreement and his

Counsel did notqsnﬁ Sq correct the deviation from what was agreed

013 APR 1A
upon. See: Tr. pg.15 line 20 - pg. 16 line .22; pg. 23 line 11- Pg.
-\ A Rfj\n‘_.

27 line® tgrn?husn)ht is clearly shown Counsel's performance fell

below the reasonable norms required of attorneys that is establ-

ished by Strickland v. Washingtoh, and its progeny 466 U.S. 668,

104 s.ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1982).
PREJUDICE
The Supreme Court of South Carolina has recognized the princ-

iples espoused in Santobello, on numerous occasions. State v. Thrift,

312 s.c. 282, 440 s.E.2d 341 (1994); sState v. Thompson, 278 S.C. 1,

5, 292 S.E.2d 581, 584 (1982) ([santobello) stands for the propos-
ition that when an accused pleads guilty upon the promise of a pro-
secutor, the agreement must be fulfilled.) Moreover, our Supreme
Court has adopted the per se prejudice analysis of Santobello and
it is held when a defendant's plea agreement has not beeh fulfilled,
he need not show prejudice. The rule adopted from Santobello by our
Supreme Court reasoned, "[w]e need not reach the question whether
the sentencing judge would or would not have been,influeﬁced had

he known all the details of the negotiations for the plea." Recog-
nizing the "interests of justice" and the duties of the prosecution
in relation to promises made in the negotiations of pleas would be
best served by remanding the case to the state courts for one of
two dispositions. The Court indicated that the state court could
either (1) require specific performance of the plea agreement or
(2) allow Petitioner to withdraw his guilty plea.altogether and.

start over. See: Sprouse v. State, 585 S.E.2d 278, 280-81 (2003)

(citing): Ssantobello Id. at 263, 92 S.Ct. 495 o =

Page 2 of 3.
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Applicant's State and Federal right to effective assistance
of Counsel was violated when his attorney failed to ensure the
prosecution adhered to the plea agreement made to him that served
as an inducement for him to plead guilty. Consequently, his pleas
are void and this Court must grant relief. In compliance with the
holding of the Suprme Court of South Carolina, Applicant.respect—
fully requests this Court to remand his caée to the trial court
with instructions to conduct specific performance of his plea

agreement, or allow him to'withdraw his guilty plea altogether and

start over. Sprouse, I4d at 281.

Respectfully Submitted,

sﬁ/—//
/ﬁlon 3/'Taylor #350159

1
LE® o 11 UdY 6t
a4

47
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F l(t)_ E Be disposition thereof:
I

L[

L

013 APRI | 237

14,

15.

ii. ‘
4. CARRIGG
NI

! NS
i {

fi \

iv.

(¢)  ifknown, citations of any written opinions or ordets entered pursuant to each such

dispositioﬁ:

i W r@s

i v

iil. \

iv. v

Has any ground set forth in (10) been previously presented to this or any other Court,

State or Federal, in any petition, motion or application which you have filed?
N

If you answered “yes” to (14) identify:

"(a)  which grounds have been presented:

i L

ii. \

ii, Y

(b)  the proceedings in which each ground was raised:

i N {P«

ii. \
v

iii.

Revised 3/2003




49

16. ItF 1O et forth in (10) has not previously been presented to any Court, State or
dtj E‘seg1 j

tth the ground and state concisely the reasons why such ground has not

R i

TAVeed N VeR

17.  Were you represented by an attorney at any time during the course of:

(a)
(b)
(©
(d)

(e

your arraignment and plea? Nes,

your trial, if any? B

your sentencing? N
your appeal, if any, from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of

sentence? Neoe

preparation, presentation or consideration of any petitions, motions .or
applications with respect to this conviction, which you filed?

Na

18.  If you answered “yes” to one or more parts of (17), list:

(@)

i

ii.

iii.

®

ii.

iii.

the name and address of each attorney who represented you:

N

_\t\ﬂa}_\uyta._kc;\"&\nem A ‘E.fm\-

A

Colammia , H ¢. 39304

JLavver, ¥ 2 X\ey’ 3 AQ T
Rean 0% Doy W\S29
Lanmme 9.0 393

the proceedings at which each such attorney represented you:

Revised 372003
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19.  State clearly the relief you seek in filing this application:

\jacake ggmm;b‘;n cad Tamand & - dcaa), O vYacate sontence

XS adhere, duo ?‘)g:a gi:§:e;rmgﬂ \-
20.  Are you now under sentence ffdm any other court that you have not challenged?

. -
\f T = ﬂ‘_ O 9

2013CP3207282

;2
sl &
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) e =3 mal
. . ) VERIFICATIOI}_{. f r".'_'
County of _ﬁg;\-m?m\\e, ) — m
= U O
| S PO v R Y VO " Biéng dufy swom

upon my oath, depose and saﬁhat T have subscribed to the foregoing applicationfthat I'%thow the
contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for vacating, setting aside or
correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this application; and that the matters and

allegations therein set forth are true.
L S

SWORN to Wed before me this / D

day of ( 90[/3
mﬁm _(L8)

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: \\"\{ - '3D/ b

=

fuw]

= TN
-
. m
U o
=

LS

. |
Revised 3/2003
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APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT
IN SUPPORT THEREOF

L_Tden —Sed “Taular

‘ , hereby apply for leave to
proceed in this action without Qyepayment of fees or costs or security therefor. In support of my
application I declare under penalty of perjury that the following facts are true:

(0
@

1 am the applicant in this action and [ believe I am entitled to redress.

Because of my poverty | am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give
security thereof.

/S 7’/"’

[~ Applicfnt

SWORN or affi to and subscribed before me this
day of __ N 1> .

\

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: \\“ L/ ‘ 37)/ b

LEd c )1 bV ol
a3ni3

. Revised 3/200%
7 - ;
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) INTHE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ; ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
)
~ Jalon Ted Taylor. ; C.A. No. 2013..-CP-32-1282
8.C.D.C. No. 350159 ) -
Applicant, ;
v. ; RETURN i B
State of South Carolina, ; ‘x i
Respondent. § i‘

In response to the post-conviction relief application filed April 11, 2013, Respondent

would show this Court:
L

Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant
to orders of commitment of the Lexington County Clerk of Court. Applicant was indicted at the
March 2011 term of the Lexington County Grand Jury for possession of stolen goods, more than
$10,000 (2011-GS-32-0641), at the November 2011 term for forgery, less than $10,000 (2011-
GS-32-3399) and attempted murder (2011-GS-32-3506). Kristy Goldberg, Esq., represented
him. On March 15, 20‘12, Applicant pled guilty as indicted before the Honorable William P.
Keesley to the charges of possession of stolen goods and forgery. Applicant. also pled guilty to
the leéser included offense of assault and battery of a high and aggravated nature (ABHAN).
Judge Keesley sentenced him to imprisonment for a term of five (5) years for possession of
stolen goods; fo a term of five (5) years for forgery; and to a term of ten (10) years for ABHAN.

These sentences were to be served consecutively.

Page 1 of 5 (Responsive Pleadings)



A timely notice of appeal was filed and perfected on Applicant’s behalf pursuant t0

Anders'. Wanda H. Carter, Esq., represented Applicant on appeal. The South Carolina Court of

Appeals dismissed the appeal and granted counsel’s motion to be relieved. State v. Taylor, Op.

No. 2013-UP-308 (S.C. Ct. App. filed July 3, 2013). The Remittitur was issued on July 22,
20132
Attached herewith and incorporated herein are the records of the Lexington County Clerk
of Court regarding t.he subjecf convictions, Applicant’s records on appeal, and Applicant's
application, Respondent reserves the right to amend this Return upon receipt of any relevant
materials.
IL
In his current application for Post-Conviction Relief,‘ Applicant alleges that he is being
held in custody unlawfully for the foilowing reasons:.
1. “Ineffective Assistance of Trial Counsel”
a. Counsel “failed to ensure the State adhered to the plea agreement made to him
: that served as an inducement for him to plea guilty.”
2. “Involuntary guilty plea that resulted from breach of plea agreement”
HL
Respondent submits Applicant’s allegation of ineffectivel assistance of plea
counsel is without merit. In a PCR' action, the applicant bears the burden of proving the

allegations in their application. Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 442, 334 S.E.2d 813, 814 (1985)

(citing Griffin v. Martin, 278 S.C. 620, 300 S.E.2d 482 (1983)). Where the ap'p]ication alleges

ineffective assistance of plea counsel as a ground for relief, the applicant must prove "counsel's

conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process™ that the plea

: Anders v. California, 386 U.S. 738 (1967).
* Applicant filed this application for PCR while his direct appeal was still pending; however, Applicant withdrew his
appeal before Respondent made a motion to dismiss. Respondent now proceeds accordingly.

Page 2 of 5§ (Responsive Pleadings)
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proceedings “cannot be relied upon as having produced a just result.” Id. (citing Strickland v.
Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 686 (1984)).

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided representation
within the range of competence required in criminal casés. Id. (citfng Strickland, 466 U.S.at
687; Turner v. Bass, 753 F.2d 342 (4th Cir. 1985); Marzullo v. Maryland, 561 F.2d 540 (4th Cir.
1977)). The court strongly presumes trial counsel rendered adequate assistance and made all |
significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable i)mfessional judgment. Id. (citing Strickland,
466 U.S. at 690). The applicant must overcome this presumption in order to receive relief.
Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 118, 386 S.E.2d 624, 625 (1989).

The reviewing court applies a tyvo-pronged test in evaluating allegations of ineffective
assistance of plea counéel. Id. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625. First, the Applicant must prove plea
counsel_'s performance was deficient. | Id. Uﬁder this prong, the court measures an attorney’s |
performance by its "reasonableness under prevailing professional norms." Id. (citing Strickland,
466 U.S. at 688). Second, counsel's deficient performance must have prejudiced the Applicant
such that "there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result
of the proceeding would have been different.” Id. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. With respect to |
guilty plea couﬁsel, the Applicant must show there is a reasonable probability that, but for |
counsel's alleged errors, he would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to trial.
Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 59 (1985).

Respondent submits Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the Strickland test.
However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of trial counsel probably raises questions of fact
the record does not conclusively refute. Accordingly, Respond;:nt requests an evidentiary

hearing to‘fully tesolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264, 305 S.E.2d 247 (1983).

Page 3 of 5 (Responsive Pleadings)



Iv.
Respondent submits Applicant’s allegation his guilty plea was involuntary is also without
merit. In PCR cases, an applicant asserting a constitutional violation must frame the issue as one

of ineffective assistance of counsel. Al-Shabazz v. State, 338 S.C. 354, 363-64, 527 S.E.2d 742,

747 (2000) (citing Drayton v. Evatt, 312 S.C. 4, 430 S.E.2d 517 (1993); Hyman v. State, 278

S.C. 501, 299 S.E.2d 330 (1983); Richardson v. State, 310 S.C. 360, 426 S.E.2d 795 (1993)). An
applicant who pleads guilty on the advice 6f counsel fnay collaterally attack the plea only by
showing (1) counsel was ineffective and (2) there is a.reasonable probability that but for
counsel's errors, the defendant would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to
trial. Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20, 546 S.E.2d 417, 419 (2001) (citing Hill v. Lockhart, 474
U.S. 52; Jackson v. State, 342 S.C. 95, 535 S.E.2d 926 (2000); Thompson v. State, 340 S.C, 112,
531 S.E.2d 294 (2000); Rayford v. State, 314 S.C. 46, 443 S.E.2d 805 (1994)). An applicant
alleging his guilty plea was induced by ineffective assistance of counse! must prove counsel's
advice was not "within the competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases." Hill v.
Lockhart, 474 U.S. at 56. Furthermore, “[a] guilty plea is a solemn, judicial admission of the

truth of the charges™ against the applicant. Dalton v. State, 376 S.C. 130, 137, 654 S.E.2d 870,

874 (Ct. App. 2007) (citing Blackledge v. Allison, 431 U.S. 63 (1977)). Admissions “made
during a guilty plea should be considered conclusive unless [an applicant] presents vélid reasons
wﬁy he shouid be allowéd to depart from the truth of his statements.” Id. at 137-38, 654 S.E.2d
at 874 (citing Crawford v. United States, 519 F.2d 347 (4th Cir. 1975); Edmonds v. Lewis, 546
F.2d 566 (4th Cir. 1976)).

Respondent submits the record fully supports the knowing and voluntary nature of

Applicant's plea. However, allegations regarding the voluntariness of the plea may raise

. Page 4.0f 5 (Responsive Pleadings)
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questions of fact the record does not conclusively refute. Accordingly, Respondent requests an
evidentiary hearing on this allegation. Sharper, 279 S.C. 264,305 S.E.2d 247.
\Y
Respondent denies each allegatidn @at is not expressly admitted, qualified or explained.
| VL
WHEREFORE, Respondent moves to summarily dismiss the application because it was
filed after the statute of limitations had expired. ' In the alternative, Respondent requests that an

evidentiary hearing be held.

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney General

KAREN C. RATIGAN
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

WALT WHITMIRE
Assistant Attorney General

By:
ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

Office of the Attorney General
P.O. Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211

, 2015
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| questions of fact the record does not conclusively refute. Accordingly, Respondeﬁt requests an
evidentiary hearing on this allegation. Sharper, 279 S.C. 264, 305 S.E.2d 247.
v
Respondent denies each allegation that is not expressly admitted, qualified or explained.
VL
WHEREFORE, Respondent moves to summarily dismiss the application because it was
filed after the statute of limitations had expired. In the alternative, Respondent requests that an

evidentiary hearing be held.

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney General

KAREN C. RATIGAN
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

PATRICK L. SCHMECKPEPER
Assistant Attorney General

By: ;FLQKL\

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

Office of the Attorney General
P.O. Box 11549 L
Columbia, SC 29211;-+

@PU:"A ber F2015 | ‘
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON - )
)
) 2013-CP-32-1282
JALON T. TAYLOR, #350159, )
- )
Applicant, )
' )
vs ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
)
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent. )
)
L. I am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.

2. Regular communication by mail exists thro’ughout the State of South Carolina and that
this is a proper circumstance of service by mail.

3. I have this day served a copy of the Return on the above-captioned matter on the
following person by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

Ms. Aimee Zmroezek, Esquire

A.J.Z. Law Firm, LLC. -
PO Box 11961 X
Columbia, SC 29211

DATED this 30™ day of September, 2015.

Gemn, Saime

Ashley Hawobth, Legal Assistant
For Respondent
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

)
) COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON )

JALON T. TAYLOR, )
Applicant, g
v. ). CaseNo. 13-CP-32-1282
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 3
Respondent. - %
TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING

The within Post-Conviction Relief Hearing in the above-captioned matter
was held on April 18, 2016, before The Honorable Perry H. Gravely in the Court
of Common Pleas for Lexington County; attended by counsel as follows:

APPEARANCES:

_Johanna C. Valenzuela, Esq.
Assistant Attorney General
... appearing for State of South Carolina

Aimee Zmroczek, Esq.
... appearing for Applicant

Deborah Garrison

Circuit Court Reporter — 13th Judicial Circuit
P O Box 27145
Greenville, South Carolina 29616-7145
dgarrisonf@sccourts.org




Jalon T. Taylor v. State of South Carolina
Case No. 13-CP-32-1282
Hearing of April 18, 2016
Before The Honorable Perry H. Gravely
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Jalon T. Taylor v. State of South Carolina
Case No. 13-CP-32-1282
Hearing of April 18, 2016

Before The Honorable Perry H. Gravely

(APPLICANT PRESENT)

THE COURT: Good morning, Mr.'Taylor.
APPLICANT: Good morning.
THE COURT: All right, I will be glad

to hear from you, Mr. Valenzuela.

MS. VALENZEULA: Yes, Your Honor. The
next case that we are calling is Jalon Taylor
versus the State of South Carolina, Case
Number 2013-CP-32-1282. |

Mr..Taylor filed the current application
on April 11*, 2013. He is presently confined
in the South Carolina Department of
Corrections.

He was indicted in the March 2011 term
of the Lexington County Grand Jury for

possession of stolen goods, more than ten

thousand ($10,000); Indictment Number 11-GS-

32-0641.

He was also indicted in November of 2011
term for forgery less than ten thousand
($10,00) under Indictment Number 11-GS-32-
3399; and for attempted murder, 11-GS-=32-
3506. He was represented by Christie
Goldberg on those charges and on March 15%,

2012, he pled guilty to those charges before
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Jalon T. Taylor v. State of South Carolina
' Case No. 13-CP-32-1282
Hearing of April 18,2016
Before The Honorable Perry H. Gravely

Judge Keesley: possession of stolen goods,
forgery and then assault and battery first
under the indictment for attempted murder.

Your Honor, in our return I would just
note that we accidently listed in the first
paragraph that he pled to ABHAN, assault and
battery of a high and aggravated nature, so
that correction will need to be made because
he actually pled to assault and battery
first.

Judge Keesley sentenced Mr. Taylor to
imprisonment to a term of five years for
possession of stolen goods, five years for
forgery and tén years for assault and battery
first. Those sentences were to be served
consecutively.

The inmate filed a timely notice 6f
appeal and was represented by Wanda Carter.
The South Carolina Court of Appeals dismissed
the appeal and the remittitur was issued on
July 22°, 2013.

The current application before the Cdurt,
the Applicant alleged that counsel failed to
ensure that the State adhere to the plea

agreement made to him, that served as an
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Jalon T. Taylor v. State of South Carolina
Case No, 13-CP-32-1282
Hearing of April 18, 2016

Testimony of Applicant - Direct Examination

inducement for him to plead guilty.

He is represented in this case by Aimee
Zmroczek, who is present in the courtroom
with him.

The return to that application was filed
by our office on September 30, 2015.

THE COURT: All right. Ms. Zmroczek,
I will be glad to hear from you.

MS. ZMROCZEK: Thank you. Your

Honor, at this time we would call Jalon

Taylor. He’s ready to move forward with his

application.

THE COURT: Mr. Taylor, please come

forward. |
(WITNESS TAKES STAND)

JALON T. TAYLOR, having been sworn to
tell the truth, and nothing but the truth,
testified as follows:

| DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. ZMROCZEK:

Q. Mr. Taylor, how old are you?
A. Twenty-four.

Q. Twenty-four?

A. (Affirﬁative nod) .

Q

N How old were you when you were sentenced?
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Jalon T. Taylor v. State of South Carolina
Case No. 13-CP-32-1282
Hearing of April 18, 2016

Testimony of Applicant - Direct Examination

A. Nineteen.

Q. Who was your attorney?

A. Christie Goldberg.

Q. Miss Christie Goldberg?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. And how many times did &ou meet with Ms.
Goldberg?

A. Twice.

Q. TWere you detained when you met with her?
A. One time. One time and then one time

when I was on the streets.

Q. Did you bond out?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. The second time, when you were on the
streets, that you met with her did you meet
with anybody else or was it just the two of
you?

A, Just the two of us.

Q. Let’s be clear before we go any further
what you are doing here today is asking the
judge to enforce the plea agreement that was
extended to you. Correct?

A. Yes, ma'am.'

Q. Tell the judge what that plea agreemént

was.
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A. Prior to coming in the courtrcom I was
told that I would receive no more thaﬁ ten
years once I_signed. Me, my brother, my
mother, we was all gathered around and we was
told that I would receive no more than ten
years.

I asked several times to leave the
courtroom or have a recess so that I could
speak with my family.

I wanted to go ahead and go through the
process because at the time I was still
young, i was nineteen at the time. I
understood that I'd receive no more than ten
years.

That is what the agreement was that was
made before I walked into this courtroom.

Q. So your understanding of-the plea
agreement when you walked in was that you’d
receive no more than ten years?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Were you expecting to receive ten years?
A. About eight.

Q. But no more than ten years?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And you said that she told you no more
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than ten in front of your family members?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Was Ms. Jamison one of those family
members?

A. Yes, and she is here today.

Q. Who was Ms. Jamison?

A, My mother.

Q. You said that Judge Keesley had allowed
you time to go in and out of the courtroom to
discuss this plea with your family?

A. No, ma’am. They stayed on the record.
If I need more time to speak with my family,
to think about it, I didn’t even have to plea
that same day. If I needed more time to
think about it, I could have left that very
same day.

Q. And what did you decide?

A. I decided to go ahead being that I had —

with the advice of my lawyer, my attorney
that I would receive no more than teh years,
I felt like I could go ahead and get this
behind me.and gef back to my family and my
son.

Q. Do you remember when you stood in front

of the judge and he asked you a bunch of
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question if you were satisfied with your
attorney?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Why did you answer affirmatively?. Why
did you answer ‘yes’?

A. I answered yes out of, I guess, being --
you know, I didn’'t know that she didn’t make
the proper correction that she was'supposed
to, the proper objection.

Q.‘ So let me ask you that. Did he ask you
if you were satisfied with your attorney
before he told you what the sentence was?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. So when he was asking you_those questions
and you were answering ﬁhé'affirmative, why
were you doing that?

A. I guess that it was kinda like ---

Q. At that point what did you think that you
were getting?

A. I still had that -- I was expecting ten,
no more than.

Q. Okay. And then you -- you did ask her to
file an appeal, right?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. You didn’t have any issues with your
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appeal, right?
A. I dismissed it.
Q. The way that you explained how she -- you
had to sign the paperwork. Right?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Show me —-- show the judge the way that
she explained.
A. © Well, my mother was sitting outside and
-— may I.stand up?
MS. ZMROCZEK: Judge, may he show you
-— he has the sentencing sheets that he ---
THE COURT: All right. Are you going
to mark that? If you’ré going to use it as
an exhibit you need to mark it.
MS. ZMROCZEK: It is just the
sentencing sheets, which is in the record but

we can go ahead and mark it.

APPLICANT: Let me show it to you
first.
COURT REPORTER: Hold on one second.

Applicant’s Exhibit 1, three pages marked

collectively.
APPLICANT: Okay.
THE COURT: To clarify, I’ve got it in

my packet but I’ve written all over mine.
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MS. ZMROCZEK: Okay. They are part
of the packet, they are nothing new but we’ll
use this so that he can show you what he was
explaining to me.

DIRECT EXAMINATION CONTINUED
BY MS. ZMROCZEK:
Q. Okay, that’s been marked as Plaintiff’s
(sic) Exhibit 1.
A. Okay. When I seen this, when I was
signing it as defendant, this‘was -- this was
not at the top. I was to not receive no more
than ten. I think that it was stapled. See
how it’s stapled, got a staple right here?
So when the page was flipped, I never seen it
and I signed it. I just -- once I seen this
ten right here, that was what I thought we
were going forward with because that was our
negotiations. I did not know. Did not know.
0. So you saw the zero to ten and then the
page got flipped up and you ---
A. Right. You can see the staple.
Everybody was under the impression -- my
mother -- I seen that zero to ten and'I was
thinking that was the first thing that the

judge would see and he wouldn’t give me no

11
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more.

Q. So you didn’t see the other sentences

that were written at the top?
A. No, ma'am.
THE COURT: Let me ask you this, are

there three sentencing sheets?

APPLICANT: Yes, sir.
MS. ZMROCZEK: There are.
THE COURT: I think my package only has

two. Okay, it’s on the back. I see that.
DIRECT EXAMINATION CONTINUED
BY MS. ZMROCZEK:
Q. Mr. Taylor, other than that, do you have
any other complaints or anything that you
want the court to know?
A. Yes, ma'am. The State’s objection -- my
plea agreement was breached,'ﬁh, and they
asked that I get the maximum sentence. I Was
under the impression that I came here with no
negotiations, no recommendations. Therefore
I was expecting no one to make
recomméndations. When the solicitor and the
investigator came and said that they were
asking for me to get the maximum sentence and

making lots of accusations -- which I guess
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was —-- but I was told that I received no
negotiations and no recommendations for the
record. No negotiation...-That.was breached
when they asked that I get the maximum
sentence and no one objected. Me being
nineteen, I didn’t know that I could have
object to them asking at I get the maximum
sentence. I thought that it was a deal.

Q. So your understanding of ‘no
recommendation’ and ‘noc negotiatioﬁs’ went
also to the State when they stood up and they
said -- and they asked or they made a
recommendation, or they asked for the maximum
sentence.

A. Yes. It also confused me when my lawyef
asked if I could get my time run consecutive
instead of concurrent.

Q. And Judge Keesley corrected her on that,

right?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. But YOu were confused that she’'d ---
A. I was nervous. That was a bad point.

Q. Right. So it was your understanding that
you would be getting no more than ten years?

A. (Affirmative nod), no more than ten
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years.

Q. And that is the only reason that you

pled?
A, Yes, ma'am.
Q. Okay. Please answer any questions that

Ms. Valenzuela has for you.
A, Okay.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MS. VALENZUELA:
Q. Mr. Taylor, how are you?
A. I'm alright.
Q._ Good. Now, Mr. Taylor, you pleaded
guilty to forgery, receiving stolen goods and
assault and battery first degree; right?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. You knew going into the plea that you

were pleading to three different charges;

correct?
A. Yes; ma'am.
Q. So on the sentencing sheets that you just

showed us, Exhibit 1, when you said that they
were flipped form one page to the next to the

third, you signed each sheet individually?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Underétanding that each sheet represented
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a separate charge?

A. I do now.

Q. Prior to pleading, you said that you’d
met with Ms. Goldberg twice?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Then there was some reference in the
transcript to you failing to meet with
Probation while you were out on bond. Do you
remember that?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And so during that time, -do you know if
Ms. Goldberg had tried to reach you and been
unable to reach you?

A. Any time she called me, I answered. Any

‘time that she asked mé’to meet her somewhere,

I met her. There had never been a time when
I’d never met her.

Q. So during the time that you weren’t able
to check in with your probation agent, you
were still able to check in with your
attorney?

A. Yes, ma'amn.

0 How many times did Ms. Goldberg call you?
A. Maybe four or five.
Q

So you spoke to Ms. Goldberg four or five
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times prior to pleading guilty?

A. (Affirmative nod).

Q. And those were over the phone?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Were those in addition to meeting her

twice in person?

A. I only met her once in person.

Q. So earlier I understood you to say once
while you were in jail and once while you

were out on the street, meaning two different

times?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Just so that I am not confused, you met

her twice in person?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Two times in person, four to five times
on the phone?

A. Yes, ma'am.

0. Now, do you recall reviewipg‘your
discovery with Ms. Goldberg?

A. No, ma’am.

Q. Do you recall discussing possible
defenses with Ms. Goldberg?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. What defenses did y'all discuss?
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A. Being that -- the defenses, I wouldn’t be
able to say verbatim. It was several other
cases that —-- I wouldn’t know hbw to give it
to you verbatim on our defenses.

Q. Okay. But on several occasions you spoke
to Ms. Goldberg about possible defenses that
you might have?

A. Yés, ma'am.

Q. Do you recall discussing self defense, a
self-defense argument and why that wouldn’t
work, based on the fact that even though you
had been robbed two days prior to you |
shooting the victim, the delay in time was
just too much to use that defense in the
attempted murder charge?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. You do recall that?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay. Great. What potential witnesses
did you have that you wanted Ms. Goldberg to
meet with that she didn’t meet with? |

A. There wasn’t none.

Q. Okay. Now, after meeting with Ms.
Goldberg you agreed to plead guilty; correct?

A. Yes, ma'am.
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Q. And prior to the day of the plea, you had
agreed to plead guilty?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. So prior to talking to your family and
Ms. Goldberg out in the hallway, you had
already agreed to plead guilty?

A. Yes, ma'am. Only due to the
conversation that we had over the phone.

Q. When you pled guilty, you waived your
constitutional rights?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q- Do you remember waiving your right to
remain silent?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And waiving your right to have a jury
trial?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And waiving the right to‘require the
State to prove you guilty beyond a reasonable
doubt?

A. Yes, ma'aﬁ.

Q. Okay. At your plea when the judge asked
if you were satisfied with your attorney, you
replied “yes, sir.”

A. Yes, ma'am.
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Q. And when asked if you wanted your
attorney to do anything else on the case that
had not been done, you replied “no, sir.”

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q.- And when asked if you had any complaints
of any kind against your attorney, you
replied “no, sir.”

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. And when asked if you’d had enough time

to meet with your attorney and discuss things
with her so that she could properly represent
you, you also indicated “yes, sir.”

A. | Yes, ma'am.

Q. Now you were also asked if anyone had
promised you anything else to get you to
plead?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And you said no.

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Do you remember the judge telling you,
quote, “Any plea bargains the State has made
with you, they have to tell me about on the
record in open court or put it in a written
plea agreement or you lose what they don’t

tell us about.” Do you remember that?

19
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A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. And did the solicitor ever say on the
record or in writing that there was a plea

offer of no more than ten years?

A. No, ma'am.

Q. No?

A. No, ma'am.

Q. Now, when asked if you were actually

guilty of receiving stolen goods, forgery and
assault and battery first degree you replied
“yes, sir” to the court.

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And when you answered -- then you
answered “no, sir” when asked if anyone had
threatened, forced or coerced you in any way
to plead against your will.

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And before you answered all of those
questions by the judge, you had been sworn in
to tell the truth.

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. Now, do you in fact want a trial on the
original charges of attempted murder, forgery
and receiving stolen goods? Is that what

you’'re asking for today?
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A. I would like to be granted a new trial.
0. 'Now, earlier Mr. Taylor you indicated

that you had an agreement of no more than ten

21

years.
A. Yes, ma'am.

0. Who was thdt agreement with?

A. Kristie Goldberg. I guess -- me and my
family.was -— I don’t know who she -- I don’t-

if She made that with the solicitor or who

she spoke with but that’s what came back to

us, that I was highly favored. It made me

relieved so that I could go home -- it led me
to believe that I could go on with the
process.

It was really to get it behind me. It
was -- it never crossed my mind that she’d
léad me or that the court didn’t really say
that.

Q. You do understand that -- you believed
that you’d be leaving the courtroom that same
day?

A. I had the opportunity to leave,
(affirmative nod). They said if I needed
more time to think about it, that I didn’t

have to take the plea. I could have left and
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had more time to think about it. Being that
she told me that I would receive no more than
ten -- that was my lawyer, I was nineteen
years old and I had no prior knowledge of the
law. She told me that I wouldn’t receive no
more than ten years. I was like, ‘I did the
crime, she know it, I know it. I'm
nineteen.’ It seemed reasonable for the
situation. I’'m nineteen.

It was never that I’d get the maximum
sentence. She said it was zero to ten and
she told me that I'd receive no more than ten
years. I believed her. I firmly believed
her.

Q. Just for the pronouns that we are using,
just to confirm, there was no representative

of the State in that meeting?

A. No, ma’am.

Q. It was just you, your attorney and your
family?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And earlier you said -- that during the
plea there was no representative from the
State who ever said to the court, in writing

or orally, that they would be offering you a

81



82

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Jalon T. Taylor v. State of South Carolina
Case No. 13-CP-32-1282
Hearing of April 18, 2016
Testimony of Applicant - Cross Examination

plea of no more than ten years?

A. Yes, ma'ém. It was in writing on the
plea that I would receive no negotiation or
recommendation, and those were.made.

Q. Those were made by Lieutenant Simmons,

correct?
A, If I can recall, (affirmative nod). I

think so, Ms. Simmons.

Q. And the prosecutor who was handling the
plea throughout the plea negotiations -- I'm
sorry =-- throughout your guilty plea, did
that prosecutor ever say that they wanted to
maximum senténce?

A. Not on the transcript, not on the -- I
guess they were in cahoots, that they was
partners together. I don’t know what was

said over there, who was supposed to have

said it or how y'all didn’t know it was said.

Q. But it was said by a person who was
called up to address the plea agreement as
part of the -- as part of the plea.

A. To be honest, I don’t know how the
investigator even got in here or knew that I
was taking the plea. Speaking -- making

false allegations. That was a tremendous
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part of my case, having someone come speak.'_
And I had no way to -- whether or not it was
the solicitor or the -- it was both. He came
from this side of the courtroom, he didn’t
come from my side of the courtroom.
Q. And that discussion by Lieutenant Simmons
happened before you told the court that you
did want to plead guilty that day. Correct?
A. Um-humm, (affirmative nod). Could be.
I'm not sure.

MS. VALENZUELA: Your Honor, is it okay
if I approach?

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.

MS. VALENZUELA: I gave your client a
copy of the transcript.

CROSS EXAMINATION CONTINUED

BY MS. VALENZUELA:
Q. If you look at page fourteen, you see
Lieutenant Simmons start speaking.
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Okay. Then do you see how on page
twenty-eight, about fourteen pages later, the

court asks you if you want to say anything to

the court?

A. Yes, ma'am.
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Q. Okay. Did you say at anytime during that
speech to the court that you have a problem
with what Lieutenant Simmons had said?

A. I had an attorney and she didn’t raise
any objections to it. Me, having né prior
knowledge to the law, I didn’t know that I
could object to what he said or even speak on
that behalf. I was nineteen. I had no
knowledge. I was in court. I didn’t have no
lawyér. My family, we -- I was ignorant to
the effect that -- that’s what attorneys are
for.

I was in resource classes all through
school. I graduated high school but I was in
resource classes, so certain things may take
me -- maybe I can’t read it the first time,
but once I slow down I -- sometimes I can’t
get everything out.

So I've got to -- that guy that was in
court wasn’t me. Now I’'ve got resources, I
give all my time to the law libraries and
everything. I took a plea, I didn’t go to
trial, so I had to go through and find this.
I know that it wasn’t right but I just had to

go through and find out what was what.
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Yes, ma'am. I had no knowledge of what
I could do or what I couldn’t do. I was
nineteen. It was though I was still a babe
-- I was still a baby boy. A baby boy. I
didn’t know what to say. I expected her to
speak for me, that’s what -- that’s the
problem. I had someone who was supposed to
speak for me, for my life, and -- it don’t
work like that. I have to speak for myself,
for my own life.
Q. And did you speak for yourself to Ms.
Goldberg by asking her to step to the side so
that you could let her know any concerné?
A. She made no objections. No, I didn't
understand that.
Q. Then when you were before the judge, do
you remember the judge telling you that you
were facing a maximum of twenty-five yearé
for the charges that you were pleading to?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. So you did hear the judge tell you that
the charges, that if they were run
consecutively, that it would add up to
twenty-five years?

A, Yes, ma'am.
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Q. And you heard that before you decided to
plea guilty?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And you in fact still pled guilty?

A. Yes, ma'tam.

Q. And the judge did in fact senténce you to
less than the maximum? He sentencéd you to

less than twenty years and all of the charges

were run consecutively?

A. Twenty-three.

. Q. So less than twenty-five?
A. Yes, ma'am.
MS. VALENZUELA: "Your Honor, that’s all

that I have.
MS. ZMROCZEK: ‘Just very briefly.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. ZMROCZEK:
Q. If you will turn to page seventeen, Mr.
Taylor, of the plea transcript.
Yes, ma'am.
Let me know when you are there.
I'm there.
You there?

Yes, ma'am.

© » o p oo P

I am lboking Page 17, Line 17, the Court
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says, (reading):
THE COQURT: Have you had enough time to

make up your mind about all of this?

DEFENDANT : No, sir.

THE COURT: You have not?
DEFENDANT : No, sir.

THE COURT: Do you need more time?
DEFENDANT : No, sir. I’'m sorry.

Did I read that correctly?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. So the court was confused with your
answers.
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Is that the sort of confusion that you
were talking about?
A. Yes, ma'am. My lawyer gave this look
like, ‘what you doing?’ When I went like
‘no, sir’, she gave me a look like ‘what you
doing.’ She got me a nice deal of ten. I
could do my time, be at home. That’s what it
was. That’s what it was.
Q. And when Ms. Valenzuela asked you about
-—- when she said no representative of the
State was there when they were negotiations

about no more than ten years, what was your
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understanding about what Ms. Goldberg --
where she had gotten that authority?

A. It’d been the time, I guess when I’d come
in for a bond revocation or something. I
seen her working with -- that guy over there,
I_think that they ---

Q. No, no, no.

A. I seen these people and I thought -- she
was from Richland County and this was
Lexington County. I thought she spoke with
someone over here being that got the failure
to stop for blue lights thrown out for me in
Richland County. I thought that it was some
type. I believe that if it would be some
truth that it would all be truth when she
speak with me.

Q. Okay, And on page fourteen when
Lieutenant -- first of all, Ms. Ushrey
(phonetic), who was the prosecutor, she was
not your original prosecutor; right?

A. (Affirmative nod), no, ma'’am.

c. It was actually Mr. Dale Scott?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. So when -- on page fourteen when Mr.

Simmons starts asking for the maximum
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penalty, he was -- when he was speaking, it
was your understanding, and Ms. Ushrey had
actually said that Mr. Simmons would be
speaking on behalf of the State?
A. The State -- it was to be on behalf of
the State.
Q. So that’s why you said that the State had
someone present for the negotiatioh -—-
A, Yes, ma'am. Yes, ma'am.

MS. ZMROCZEK: I don’t have any
further questions.

MS. VALENZUELA: Your Honor, may I ask
two follow up questions?

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MS. VALENZUELA:
Q. Mr. Taylor, did you understand that you
were facing up to thirty years if the State

had proceeded forward with this attempted

‘murder charge?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And then as part of the agreement that
you had with the State it was that they were
not going to make you plead to attempted
murder, that they were going to allow you to

plead to assault and battery, first; which
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reduced the maximum charges?

31

A. With zero to ten, (affirmative nod). It

was never attempted murder, which is the
reason Ms. Goldberg never had a problem with
it. It was never attempted murder. If we
went to trial, we would not get —-- it‘was

attempted murder.

Q. Did you ask your attorney to go to
trial?
A. Yeah. If that was the case -- we had

folks that was going to speak on my defenses.

I didn’t -- I wasn’t -- not in my defense,
but we calculated in our mind who they were-
going to put up. I could have went to trial
and I would not have got attempted murder.
We could have went to trial and fought that.
The other charges that I had had been —-- I
pled to those charges due to the fact that
they got me tolplead to nonviolent, first
degree assault and battery. That’s why I
didn’t plead to attempted murder. The other
charges, I was never there.

Q. Thank you, Mr. Taylor.‘

MS. VALENZUELA: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You may step down.
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(WITNESS STEPS DOWN)

THE COURT: Next witness.

MS. ZMROCZEK: Very briefly, Your
Honor, we call Amanda Jamison.

(WITNESS TAKES STAND)

AMANDA JAMISON, having been to tell the
truth, and nothing but the truth, testified
as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. ZMROCZEK:
Q. Ms. Jamison, how are you related to Jalon
Taylor?
A. That’s my son.
Q. Your son?
A (Affirmative nod).
Q Were you present the day that he pled
guilty in court?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. What is your recollection of the -- of

what he was told when he pled?

MS. VALENZUELA: Objection, Your Homnor.
Hearsay.
MS. ZMROCZEK: I’11 rephrase the

guestion, Your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION CONTINUED
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BY MS. ZMROCZEK:
Q. Were you presgnt while there was a
conversation going on?
A. Yes, ma'am, it was right out there, Yes,
ma'am, (affirmative nod).
Q. And you said right out there?
A. We was sitting down, waiting to come into
court.
‘Q. So you were sitting outside the court-
room?
A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. And you heard Ms. Goldberg, his attorney,

tell ---
MS. VALENZUELA: Objection,

It would still be hearsay.

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sustained.

MS. ZMROCZEK: Your Honor, Ms.
Goldberg is a party to the case.

THE COURT: She is a witness in the
case.’

MS. ZMROCZEK: Yeah, I guess so.

Yes. Let me rephrase.

DIRECT EXAMINATION CONTINUED

BY MS. ZMROCZEK:

Q. Ms. Jamison, let me ask this.

What was
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your understanding, not what you heard, not
anything else, but what was your understand—
ing of what your son would be receiving in
this case?

A. Ten years.

Q. Okay. How many times did you meét with
your son and his attorney?

A. I never met with her until we was —-
until the court date.

Q. Was he given an opportunity to discuss
whether or not to plea that day?

A. When we was out there ---

Q. Don’t tell me what other people said.

A. No. When she was out there speaking it
was me, the lawyer, my other fémily members
and —— and I don’t know about the law either.
I was of the -- her words was that ---

Q. No, no, don’t tell me what her words
were. Just tell me what your understanding
was.

A. My understanding was that he was going to
get ten years.

Q. That’s all the questions that I have for
you. Thank you.

A. Yes, ma'am.
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CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MS. VALENZUELA:

Q. Hi, Ms. Jamison. How are you?
A, Nervous.
Q. Don’t be nervous. Ms. Jamison, can you -

tell me how to spell your last name?
A. J-a-m-i-s-o-n.
Q. Okay, I spelled it right when I wrote it

down. Ms. Jamison, did you hear your son

testify that he had spoken to his attorney on

the telephone on several occasions?
A. Yes, ma'am. i
Q. Were you present when your son spoke to

his attorney on the telephone on those prior

occasions?
A. No, ma'am;
- Q. And you just confirmed that you were

never present at his other in-person meetings
with his attorney?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. 'So you don't know what they discussed at
those meetings?

A. (Negative gesture).

Q. So your knowledge of. or your understand-

ing of what your son was going to get was

35
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limited to the few minutes prior to his

entering the courtroom to plead guilty?

A. Yes.

Q. And then were you present‘during the
~plea?

A. Yes, ma'amn.

Q. ~ And did you ever hear the State say that
he was not going to get anything more than
ten years, to the judge?
A, No, I didn’t.
Q. Thank you, Ms. Jamison.

MS. ZMROCZEK: No further questions.

THE COURT: You may step down

(WITNESS STEPS DOWN)

MS. ZMROCZEK: Those are all the

witness for Mr. Taylor.

THE COURT: Ms. Valenzuela:

MS. VALENZUELA: Thank you, Your Honor.

The State would call Kristy Goldberg.
(WITNESS TAKES STAND)

KRISTY GOLDBERG, having been sworn to
tell the truth, and nothing but the truth,
testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. VALENZUELA:

36
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Q. How long have you been practicing?

A, I graduated in 2005. I guess -- so in

the fall of that yeér I began at the Richland
County Public Defender’s Office. 1I’ve been
practicing law since then.

Q. Okay. And has your career since the Fall
of 2005 been focused on criminal defense?

A, There was a three-year period about thé
middle of my career where I was doing some
civil work but, other than that, the entirety
of my career has been criminal and PCRs, so©
things related to criminal defense.

Q. Do you remember with Mr. Taylor if you
were appointed or retained?

A. Appointed.

Q. And how many times do you remember

- meeting with Mr. Taylor prior to his guilty

plea.
A. I went through and looked. I can go into
detail if I need to but -- six, seven, eight
-— I have that I met with him in person at
least eight times. I met with him -- the
first was at.the jail, as he said.

But two or three additional times were

while he was at Alvin S. Glenn or at the
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Richland County courthouse for a charge that
he had over there.

Then there was a Motion to -- it was to
reconsider -- a Motion to vacate his bond, I
think that was supposed to be here in
Lexingtbn. So a couple of times it was
scheduled and we would meet here, then the
hearing got continued.

Then of course the day of the plea.

I talked to him on the phone in addition
to that, while he was on bond.

Q. ~ About how many times do you remember
talking to him on the phone?

A. You know, sometimes I make a note or that
and sometimes I don’t, depending on how
substantive it is. I know I talked to him on
the phone at least two or three times. I
believe that I talked to his mother or a
family member a couple of times as well.

Q. And you filed a Rule 5 Brady Motion for
Mr. Taylor?

A. I did.

Q. Did you review discovery with him?

A T did. On October 17, 2011, he was at

the Richland County Courthouse for another
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case. I took the opportunity, since my
office is across the street, and walked. over
and met with him in the holding cell of the
courthouse and reviewed all his discovery
materials. |

Q. Did you discuss possible defenses with
Mr. Taylor?

A. We did.

Q. And what defenses did you discuss with
him? _

A. He originally had mentioned the self-

defense issue. I talked about how legally

that was not going to be successful.

But we also talked a lot about the
difference between attempted murder and
assault and battery first degree.

I told him that based on what his
version of the events were that I thought

that factually that met assault and battery

in the first degree. So that was going to be

my goal, to get that charge as the plea

offer.

And if the State did not offer it, if he

wanted to go to trial and just argue -- not

that he was innocent but that he was instead
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guilty of assault and battery fifst degree,
that we would do that. I thought that was a
reasonable plan for this case.

Q. Did you -- in discussing his
defenses and in reviewing discbvery --
discuss the elements of all the charges that
he was facing with them?

A. We did. That was the biggest one,

I guess potential punishment-wise.

But then there were also several
potential drug charges that he did not, under
any circumstances, want‘to plead to any of
those. So that was a big point of
contention. Those ultimately did get
dismissed.

We talked about the car charge as well.
I tﬁink he was originally charged with
possession of stolen -- there was some small,
minor difference but basically the charge was
changed between what he was originally
arrested for and what he pled to. So he
really was only admitting to being in
possession of that car briefly. He was not
admitting to stealing it. So the elements of

that charge was discussed in trying to get:
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the right plea agreement for that charge.

Q. Now, can you go over for the court
the evidence that the State had against Mr.
Taylor for the attempted murder charge, the
forgefy charge, and the receiving stolen
goods charge -- then additionally the drugs
charges that were dismissed as a part of his
plea?

A. I might miss some details. But as

far as the stolen vehicle, there was a

‘vehicle that had been reported stolen. Law

enforcement ultimately found it. There were
some things left in the car, including some
drycleaning receipts, and maybe something
else that I can’t remember, that tied it back
to Mr. Taylor. I think that Mr. Taylor gave
a statement admitting to having been in
possession of the car at some point.

Then the forgery and the drugs, that all

41

came from what I believe was a search warrant .

of a house -- not Mr. Taylor’'s house but
someone else’s house. When they came in
there were drugs in different places, uh, -—-
he was very adamant that they weren’t his,

that they belonged to other people there.
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But the cash, that was -- money -- found on
his person so that’s what the forgery charge
was.

Then the assault and'battery, uh, there
was an individual walking down the street who
was shot, I think in the groin area.
Ultimately I think Mr. Taylor -- the other
person in the car with Mr. Taylor gave a
statement to the police and said that -- then
they reinterviewed Mr. Taylor and he gave a
statement saying what his involvement was.

Q. And when you reference the statement
that Mr. Taylor gave explaining what his
involvement was, was that involvement that he
admitted to shooting the gun that hit the
victim?

A. I think so, yeah. I mean, that’s

‘definitely what it was in our conversations.

I think that in the interview statement as
well. |

Q. So in summarizing the statements
against Mr. Taylor, there were at least two

separate statements where Mr. Taylor

-confessed to having possession of a stolen

vehicle and admitted to shooting at or around

42
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the victim, the victim being the one that was
actually shot in the groin area? And those
are the facts that arose out of the attempted
murder charge?

A. Right.

0. Did you review the Applicant’s
constitutional rights with him?

A. Yes.

Q. Did he éver tell you that he did not
understand something?

A. No.

Q. Did you explain the difference
between pleading straight up, negotiated or
to a recommendation?

A. I don’t know if I discussed that
because there never was an offer for a
negotiated sentence.

Q. What did you discuss with him in
teﬁms of expléining the offer from the State?

A. Okay. Lookiﬁg back at my file, it
-— when I first -- back in 2011, when I first
started negotiating this case with the
solicitor, Mr. Scott was very adamant that
law enforcement did not want Mr. Taylor --

wanted him to do a lot of time. And, uh, at
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the beginning, Dale Scott repeatedly said to
me, ‘Cannot offer you anything but concurrent
time. I can’'t offer you anything but
concurrent time. I can’t reduce the charges.
If you want to go to trial, that’s fine but I
can’t -- concurrent time is all that I can
give you.’

Then after multiple conversations with
him, and I had a very good working
relationship with the solicitor. I was
finaliy able to get the plea offer that we
had, which was -- the reduced charge of
assault and battery first, forgery and the
possession of stolen goods -- with no
agreement as to sentencing. That is what the
offer from the State was. There was no
agreement as to sentencing.

Now, when I explained all of this to Mr.
Taylor, I think what I must have.done is that
I still had in my head the idea that the
sblicitor was always talking about concurrent
time. So that was my impression of what the
sentence would be, because I didn’t think the
solicitor had a problem with that. So I told

Mr. Taylor what he was pleading to, I told
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him what the maximum sentences were on each,
I told him that I would be asking for
concurrent time, and I told him that my
understanding was that the State didn’t have
a problem with that, and that I expected that
he would get ten years.

Q. Okay, there was a lot in there so I
am going to back this up a little bit.

A. Okay.

Q. So when you were talking about how
you were dealing with Mr. Scott, that Mr.l
Scott was -- that Mr. Scott was -not
presenting during the actual plea before
Judge Keesley but that he was the prosecutor
that you were dealing with on this case.
Correct?

A. That’s right. I think that he was
in trial, so he just handed the file off to
another solicitor. I don’t think he told her
that.much about it. I think that she just
lboked over the file and talked with the

investigator and other than what -- the

. actual charges that was he was supposed to be

pleading to, I think that’s probably all that

she knew.
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Q. Okay. But when you were dealing
with Mr. Scott and you were talking about how
he told you that law enforcement felt very
strongly about Mr. Taylor and he was telling
you that he was going to be able to do
concurrent, that he wasn’t going to be able
to change or reduce the charges, you were
still talking about attempted murder?

A. Correct. |

Q. So the entire time that you are
negotiating with him you’re trying to reduce
it from attempted murder to what you believed
was a more accurate charge of assault and
battery first degree?

A. That was my biggest goal.

Q. Which also came with a significant

reduction in the maximum penalty exposure?

A. Correct.
Q. So he -- Mr. Scott went from not
being -- from refusing to reduce or dismiss

any of the chargeé to agreeing to dismiss the
drug charges and reduce the attempted murder
to assault and battery first?

A. Right. He first reduced it to

assault and battery first, but then he still
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wanted him to plea to some drug charges. So
the last thing thdt finally happened in this
case was that he said, ‘All right, I’1ll
dismiss the drug charges. Let’s just do it.’
Q. And when he said ‘let’s just doing

it, I'm reducing the charges’, did he

- indicate that he would ask for or recommend

concurrent sentences?

A. No. I have an e—mail that I sent to
him in March where I specifically said,
(reading) : “The guilty plea is March 15%%,
9:00 a.m., assault and battery first, zero to
ten years; forgery, zero to five; possession
of stolen goods, zero to five. No agreement
as to sentencing. Am I ﬁissing anything?”

He said, "“That looks good. I think that
covers it.”

Q. Would you have covered the offer
with your client in the same way?

A. Yes.

Q. And then the sentencing sheets, --
so Ms. Goldberg, I am handing you Exhibit 1.
Looking at the three charges, do you see zero
to ten written in the upper left-hand corner

of the sentencing sheet?
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Yes.

That’s on assault and battery first.

»oo

Yes.

Q. Then flipping to the second sheet --
and you would have had your client sign this?

A. (Affirmative nod).

Q. Then the second sheet, the receiving
stolen goods it also lists zero to ten years
in the upper left-hand corner?

A. Yes.

Q. Then on the last sentencing sheet,
for forgery, dealing with thé counterfeit
money that was found on your client, that
also lists zero to five years in the upper
left-hand corner?

A. Yes.

Q. And you would have gone through --
actually explain how you would have gone
through those sentencing sheets as you asked
your client to sign them?

A. To be fair, I don’t have any
independent recollection of these sentencing
sheets as opposed to any other sentencing
sheets I’'ve seen before. I have seen cases

where judges’ law clerks will write “possible
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sentence”, so -- however, Mr. Taylor did just
testify that he did see the zero to ten on
the sentencing sheet. If that is the case,
they would have been written on there at the
time of the sentence and I would have just
pointed that out to Mr. Taylor in each case,
as well as pointing out that it was without
negotiation or recommendation. But he
already knew all that because he knew what
these charges carried.

| Q. Then we were talking about how Mr.
Scott had another prosecutor step in to do
the actual plea. When that prosecutor
outlined the offer on behalf of the State and
did not recommend concurrent. Did you find
that to be an accurate representation of what
the offer from the State was?

A. The fact that the State wasn’t
recommending concurrent was accurate.

Q. So -- okay. Now, whose decision was
it to plead guilty? For Mr. Taylor to plead
guilty?

A. Uh, I -- I guess it was Mr. Taylors.
I agreed with his decision to plead guilty.

Q. So he indicated that he indicated he
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wished to plead guiltyAafter discussing it
with you?

A, The entire time I had the case, this
was a case about trying to get a plea offer
that was fair and that represented what
actually happened given Mr. Taylor’s version
of events. He never said that he was
completely innocent of all these charges but
he didn’t necessarily wish to risk a trial
when it was unnecessary either. So as long
as the plea offer was appropriate to his
version of events, it was always going to be
a plea.

Q. If you had gone to trial you would
have gone to trial on the attempted murder
charges, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Regardless of your and your client’s
assumption that this was more fairly
characterized as assault and battery first?

A. If they hadn’t given us that offer
it would have been tried as attempted murder.

Q. And additionally he would have faced
the forgery charges for the counterfeit money

that he had on him?
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A. Right.

Q. And the receiving/possession of
stolen gqods charge for the stolen car that
he was in possession of?

A, (Affirmative nod)

Q. And then, in addition, the drug
charges, he would have been facing those at
trial?

A. Right. My gquess is that if there
had been a trial on the larger charge that
the others -- that there would have been some
sort of plea negotiations afterwards. But we
never got that far. But he would have been
facing all of them.

Q. He still would have been facing all
of them?

A. (Affirmative nod).

Q. Tell me what it is in your
discussions with Mr. Taylor that led you to
believe that he would be able to present to
the jury that it wasn’t attempted murder
instead of assault and battery?

A. All T remember is that -- he was
charged with attempted murder, which is the

newer version of the statute, which very
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clearly says that you have to intend to kill.

At the time of his charges there wasn’t any

case law clarifying that. “Intend to kill”

means intend to kill. He very-clearly told

police and told police that he didn’t intend
to kill anyone. '

So if he didn’t want to plead and say
that he was trying to kill anyone, that’s
perfectly fine. That’s his right, to get on
the stand and say ‘I take ownership for what
I did, but I didn’t intend to kill anyone.’

You know, what the jury thinks, the jury
thinks. But that’s his right. I would have
supported that if it’d came to it.

Q. So just to be clear, he would have
been telling the jury that he did in fact
point the gun and shoot it in the direction
of the victims but that he had not intended
to shoot the victims that he was shooting at?
That would have been his defense to the
attempted murder charge.

A. Yeah, and I don’t remember if there
were any details about where the gun was
pointed or anything like that. But I know

that he said that he didn’t intend to kill

52
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anyone, so he shouldn’t have been charged
with attempted murder.

Q. And then you present -- of course

~you were present at the plea.

A. (Affirmative nod).

Q. Do you recall Judgé Keesley
informing your client that he was facing a
maximum of twenty five years in addition to
the probation revocation charges that were
before the court?

A. I think that would be inclusive of
the probation violation. It looks like he
was facing twenty on these charges.

Q. I'm just going to -- just so that we
are all 6n the same page, -- I'm handing you

the transcript. If you will, flip to Page

19, Line 9. Correct me if I am wrong here

but the court informs your client, (reading):
Q. You are facing the possibility
of twenty-five years on these three charges
that you are pleading guilty on?
A. You’re right.
Q. And, (reading): "“In addition there
is some time hanging over your head, three

years for the probation matter.”
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A. You’re right.

Q. So the court did inform your client
and then asked him immediately éfter if he
was sure that he wanted to plead guilty, and

your client indicated “yes.”

A. Correct.
MS. VALENZUELA: Your Honor, if I could
just have one moment -- (review cf file) --

Ms. Goldberg, when you advise your client
with what they could possible get with a plea
before a judge where there is not a
negotiated sentence, do you maké any promises
to your client that that is for sure Qhat
they are going to receive?

A. No. I mean, I never say the word
promise. I will occasionally tell clients
what I think that they are going to get or
what I expect will happen but no promises.

Q. And in this case you were expecting
ten years but you were not promising ten
years.

A. That’s right.

Q. And the State could not promise ten
years?

A. The State definitely did not promise
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ten years. T expected that it was mostly
my expectations, that they were not agreeing
to anything specific in that regard.

Q. But you communicated to your client

that it was outside of your control once the

client pled to the judge? That you thought
or you expected ten years but that you could
not promise that the judge would give that.

A, I don’t remember exactly what words
that I used, but I did not make a promise.

MS. VALENZUELA: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS EXAMINATION

MS. ZMROCZEK:

Q. Good morning.

A. Good morning.

Q. When you were -- just talking about
the ten years, you still in your mind
believed that the concurrent sentence, as you
and Mr. Scott had been discussing throughout
your negotiations was still on the table?

A. I thought in my head that when we
negotiated the charges that we did so with
the intent of those maximum number of -- the
maximum number being -- the highest number

being the sentence. I thought that Mr. Scott
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believed that he would get ten years, as well
as I did. He wasn’t there, so -- things

ended up going poorly. But to be clear, the
plea offer was no agreement as to sentencing.

Q0. And you would agree with me that no
agreement as to sentencing would include the
State not asking for the maximum?

A. I would agree with you completely.

Q. And looking back on that now, is
that something that you would have objected
to?

A. Yes.

Q. Because clearly -- and I talking, on
~— 1t’s clear that no fault of Ms. Ushery
that she had been handed this file?

A. Correct.

Q. And that she made the representation
to Judge Keelsey, beginning on page eleven,
that the victim of the attempted murder
reduced to assault and battery first was --
“BJJ for attempted murder” ---

A. Right, which I did not know before
the plea.

Q. Right, because -- obviously that

would tend to lend some credence to some sort

115



116

10
1i
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Jalon T. Taylor v. State of South Carolina 57
- Case No. 13-CP-32-1282
Hearing of April 18, 2016
Testimony of Kristy Goldberg - Cross Examination

of self-defense or something. But regardless
of that, Ms. Ushery, as an officer of the

State, turned her case over to Lieutenant

"Simmons as an officer of the State?

A. That’s fair.

Q.. And provided -- and he was providing
all kinds of information which was clearly
emotionally driven because they didn’t like
Mr. Taylor?

A. I would agree with that.

Q And in that he said some very
dispafaging thiﬁgs about Mr. Taylor that
Judge Keesley even said -—- he even commented
on that he was concerned about the type of
person that Mr. Taylor was.

A. The investigator made multiple
statements during the plea, allegations that
I'd never even heard before; that I couldn’t
combat or even defend -- do anything with.

I was put in a position where I didn’t know
what to do, because if we stood down I didn’'t
know if we would still have the same plea
offer.

Q. Okay. Then on page fourteen, he

says that'“We, the citizens of Cayce, Cayce-
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Leesburg, would ask that he get the maximum -
penalties that he can possibly get on these
charges.” That was him clearly asking for a
recommendation of the maximum.

A. I think so.

Q. And at that point -- looking back,
obviously things were going so far and you
were hearing things for the first time, but
looking back, would you agree that that is
something that you would have objected to?

A. Looking back, I think that I was
more focused on the substantive things that
the investigator was saying. That is what
was getting me kind of upset and emotionally
distraught at the moment -- wversus what he
was asking for sentencing-wise. But the
sentence request, I think is a bigger problem

because I think that is a breach of the

State’s ---
Q. Okay. Then on page seventeen when
Judge Keelsey was -- you said that you were

getting upset, clearly Mr. Taylor was getting
upset, was he not?
A. You know, I actually don’t remember

whether he reacted or not. I just don’t
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remember. He definitely wasn’t showing out
or doing anything that he shouldn’t do.

Q. Right. Right.

A. I don’t remember specifically.

Q. Do you still have the plea
transcript in front of you?

A. I do.

Q. On page seventeen where the judge is
asking him if he’s had enough time to make up
his mind and he starts to kind of waver or
hesitate a little bit, could that be -- would
that be, to you, an indication of him being
confused?

A. Not necessarily.

MS. VALENZUELA: Objection. Calls for

speculation, Your Honor.

THE COURT: If you know the answer.

MS. ZMROCZEK: I Will rephrase the
question.

THE COURT: All right.

CROSS EXMAINATION CONTINUED
BY MS. ZMROCZEK:
Q. What do you recall specifically when
he -- when the judge asked if he had enough

time and he said no, then the judge said,
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“I’'m sorry?” Then obviously there is a
change in his answer. What is your
recollection of that?

A. I’'ve had things like that come up in
pleas before. I can’t say that I have any
independent memory of this happening.

Q. Okay. But it’s certainly reasonable
that Mr. Taylor was rélying on the fact that
he believed that he was getting a maximum of
ten years?

A. I think he believed that he was
getting a ten-year sentence.

Q. Because that’s likely what you would
have represented to him?

A. That’s what I thought he was
getting. |

Q. And certainly you believed that the
State violated‘their agreement by allowing

the Lieutenant to ask for the maximum?

A. Yes.
MS. ZMROCZEK: Thank you.
THE COURT: Anything else?
MS. VALENZUELA: I have two

questions, Your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
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1 | BY MS. VALENZUELA:
2 Q. Ms. Goldberg, have ydu been present
3 at plea agreements where the State has
4 | victims speak before the court?
5 A. I have.
6 Q. Can the State control what that
‘ 7 - victim informs the court about?
8 A. Can they? I don’t know. But I've
9 | seen pleas where victims ask for something
10 | other than what the State is asking for.
11 Q. You have?
12 A. ~ (Affirmative nod).
13 Q. And in those cases did you object or
14 call off the plea?
15 THE COURT: That’s three questions.
16 MS. VALENZUELA: "Yes, sir.
17 THE COURT: I'11 let you finish asking
18 it.
19 MS. VALENZUELA: I think my point is
20 made.
21 THE COURT: All right. You ﬁay step
22 down. | |
23 (WITNESS STEPS DOWN)
24 THE COURT: Anything further from the
25 State?
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MS. VALENZUELA: No, Your Honor.
THE CQURT: Any response?
MS. ZMROCZEK: We don’t have any .

reply witnesses, Your Honor. I know I'm
appearing in front of you before, but I don’t
remember -- does Your Honor prefer closing
arguments or would you like us to submit a
proposed Order or —--

THE COQURT: The Rules are pretty clear,
I'm ready to rule. Mr. Taylor, I realize
that this is one of those situations where
the expectations and the reality -- I know
that often the attorneys are surprised when
the judge says consecutive versus concurrent,
quite frankly.

I have to -- in making my decision, I
have to go on this record, the transcript.
First of all, I note that Ms. Goldberg
objected quite strenuously to the facts
presented by the officer.

In looking at what the judge asked you
and whether you understood, he clearly asked
you if there were any promises that weren’t
on the record. You said that there wasn’t.

So at that point, you were pleading guilty
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and you’d said a document that said that
there weren’t any negotiations or
recommendations -- and I’'ve got to go on this
record. |

I think you and your attorney both
expected less. I think the record clearly
shows that they weren’t bound by anything.

So based on the record, I don’t see a
basis for changing anything and I am going to
deny your petition. Thank you.

(HEARING CONCLUDED)
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.STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
} o ) :
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON )  ELEVENTHIJUDICIAL CIRCUIT
B ) . . '
Jalon Ted Taylor, ) - By
S.C.D.C. No. 350159, ) = 1}
, ) C A. No, 2013-CP- 32-128-2 SR F’,_’_".
Applicat, ) S
). ORDER OF DISMISSA]Z.:) - m
v. ) FEx U
. . ) BEL U
State of South Carolina, ) A _
oL ol : ] -
Respondent. )
)

This matter comes before the qufrt by way of an application for post-conv_iction relief
. (PCR) filed April 11, 2013. Rc.espor;dent made its return and motion to dismiss on October 1
2015. An evidentiary hearing was held on April 18, 2016, at the Lexington County Courthouse
Applicant was present and represented by Aimee J. Zmroczek, Esquire. Johapna C. Valenzﬁel'ﬁ,
Esqui:."e, of the South Carolina Office of the Attoinéy Genera;l represented Resp;)ndent
. Appl'ican't; Amanda Jamison, Applicant’s mother; and Kristy Goldberg, Esquire, |
Applicant’s plea counsel, testified at the hearing. Applicant’s sentenc_ing sheets were adm.itted as.
Plaintiff’s Exhibit 1, and the Court had before it Applicant’s Record on Appeal, which inclu.ded
the guilty plea transcript; the Lexington County Clerk of Court records;'the South Carolina
Department of éorrections records; the PCR dpplication; and tl.le Return.
| PROCEDURAL HISTORY
Applicant is confined in the South Carol'm;a Department of Corrections pursﬁant to orders
of comnntment from the Lexington County Clerk of Court. ‘Applicant was indicted at the March

2011 term of the Lexmgton County Grand Jury for possessmn of stolen goods, more than .

{
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$1T0,000 (2011-GS-32-0641), at the November 2011 term for forgery, less than $10,000 (2011-
GS-32-3399) and attempted murder (2011-GS-32-3506). Kﬁsty Goldberg, Esq., represented

him. On March 15, 2012, Applicant pleaded guilty as indicted before the Honorable William P.

. Keesley to the charges of possession of stolen goo'ds,and forgery. Applicant also pleaded guilty

" to the lesser included offense of assault and battery, first degree. 'Judge‘Keesley sentenced him

to imprisonment for a term of five years for pbsseélsion of stolen goods; five years.'for forgery;
and ten ye&s for a§sau1t and batt;ary, first degree. These sentences were to.be served-
cénsecutively.

A timely notice of appeal was filed and perfected on Apphcant’s behalf pursuant to

Anders v. California, 386 U.S. 738 (1967). Wanda H. Carter, Esq., represented Apphcant on

appeal. The South Carolina Court of Appeals dismissed the appeal and granted counsel’s motion

to be reheved. State V. Taylo Op. No 2013-UP-308 (S.C. Ct. App. filed July 3, 2013) The

‘Remittitur was issued on J uly 22, 2013.}

FINDINGS.OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
_This Court has had the oppoﬂuﬁW to revie.w the record in its entirety aqd'has heard the
testimony and argume.nts presentéd at the PCR hearing. This Court has further had_ the
opporfunity to observe each witness who .testified-at the hearing, and to closely pass upon their
credibility. This Coﬁrt has wéighed the testimony accordinéfy. Set forth beiow;v are the relevant

findings of fact and conclusions of law as required by S.C. Code Ann, § 17-27-80 (2003).

Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

- The Applicant alleges he received ineffective assistance of counsel. ..In a PCR action,

! Applicant filed this apphcanon for PCR while his du'ect appeal was still pending; however, Apphcant withdrew his
appeal before Respondent made a motion to dismiss. Respondent then proceeded accordingly.

2
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“[tlhe burden of prc;of is on the applicant to prove his allegations by a preponderanée of the

"evidence.” Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. 385, 389, 570 S.E.2d 172, 174 (2002) (citing SCRCP"

71.1(&:)).

For an applicant to be granted PCR as a result of ineffective assistance of counsel, he

must show both: (1) that his counsel failed to render reasonably effective assistance under
prevailing. professioﬁal nonné, and (2) that he -was prejudiced by his counsel’s ineffective

performance. See Strickland v. Washington, 466 U'S. 668, 688, 692, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2065,

2067 (1984) (“[TThe defendant must show that counsel’s representation fell below an objective
standérd of reasonablénéSs fand] . . . any deficiencies in counsel’s perfbnnaﬁce must be
prejudicial to the defensé in order to co:ﬁtitute ineffective assistance under the ConStitutio_n.”);
Porter v. State, 368 SC 378, 383, 629 S.E.2d 353, 356 (2006) (;‘PCR applicant must prove: (1)
that counse] failed to render reasoha_bly effective assistance under preva.iling profeésional norms;
and (2) that the deficient performance prej;ldic'ed the applic-ant’s case.”), When tilere has been a
guilty plea, the applicant must prove that cbunsel’s representation was belovw} the standard of

reasonableness and that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, thete is a reasonable probability

129

that he would not have pleaded guilty and would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. -

Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 58-59, 106 S. Ct. 366, 370 (1985); Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20, 546
S.E.2d 417, 419 (2001) (citations omitted). '

In determining guilty plea issues, the PCR court should consider the guilty plea transcript
as well as evidence; at the PCR hearing. Harres v. Leeke, 282 S.CI 13‘_1, 318 S.E.2d 360 (1984).

This Court will now address each allegation of ineffective assistance of couhsel:

-Applicant claimed his attorney told him he would not receive a sentence over ten years if




~ .

he pleadéd guilty. Applicant also alleged his att'omey made this promise in front of Applicant’s
family member. Applicant entered. his three .sentencing sheets as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 and
claimed that although the sentencing ranges were written Across the top, he did not see those
sentence ranges because he signéd each seﬁténcing sheet wﬁﬂe they were stapledl together and
only saw the part he was-. asked to sign. -Furthér, Applicant believed his attorney \.wvas inefﬁcie;it
for failing to object when law enforcement asked the plea judge to sentéﬁce Applicant to the
maximum. . |

Applicant admitted he discussed possible defenses with his attorney who advise& him that
his version of e.vents did. not support a self-defense claim. Applicant also adinitte;d he was aﬁme
he was pleading to three different charges, and he knew he “did the cﬂme.” Applicant also
agreed during the plea he told the plea judge he did not have any cOmpl'aints about counsel or
nee;i more time with her, no one made any promises to him, no one forced or ﬁeateﬁed him,
and Applicant told the plea judge he wanted to plead guilty after he.aring the piea judge announée
the charges carried a2 maximum of twenty five years.

Amanda Jamison, Applicant’s mother, stated she was present at a meeting between
Applicant and his attorney prio; to his plea. Ms, Jamison said that after that meeting with couhsei
she also believed her son would be getting 'a ten year sentence. Ms. Jamison admitted she was
not present for any of.the prior phone conversations or in person meetings bet;veen 'Abplicant
and his counsel.

Plea counsel testiﬁed. she met with Applicant at least eight times during her
regresentafi?m. She also had several telepixone converéaﬁom with Applicant, 'and ‘she filed

discovery motions and reviewed the discovery with Applicant pri'or'to his plea. Plea counsel also

4
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testified that she discrlssed with Applicant how a self-defense claim would not work; however,

she said she did explain to Applicant that he could go to trial and possibly get convicted for
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assault and battery, first degree, based on his claim that he did not intenrl to actually shoot

someone when he fired the gun at the victim. Counsel summarized the State’s evidence against
‘_ Applicant was a dry cleaning receipt linking Applicant to "the stolen vehicle, being in ph)}sical
possession of counterfeit money when police apprehended him,‘ a statement | by Applieant
- confessing to bemg in possessron of the stolen vehicle, and a statement by Apphcant confessmg

to firing the gun that shot the victim. Counsel explained that originally the State refused to drop

any charges; however, counsel was finally able to negotlate a deal where the State would dismiss

the related drug charges and reduce the attempted murder charge to assault and battery, first

degree, with no recommendation. Counsel explained there was no agreement with the State as to

sentencing, including no prorriise ‘of concwrent sentences; however, counsel was not expecting

consecutive sentences from the plea judge. Counsel testified that if this case went to trial, she
' expected the State would have moved forward on all charges, including the drug charges and
Attempted Murder.

Courrsel was surprised arid upset about law enforcemerrt addressing the Court during the

plea and beheved the plea would have gone differently if the assrgned prosecutor had been able

to handle the plea instead of having someone step in for him. Counsel testified she d1d tell

Applicant about the maximum seritences for each charge, but she did not remember explaining
consecutive sentences to him. Finally, while counsel was expecting the sentence to be ten years
and communicated that to Applicant, she never made any promises.

Initially, this Court notes"Applicant confirmed to the plea judge that he wanted to plead
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" guilty to his charges after the plea judge informed Applicant he was facing maximum of twenty-

five year.s. imprisonment on the thrce- charges'and' had three years on a probation matter (Plea
trans.cript; p. 19). Applican; also told the plea judge that he understood the trial nghts he was
waiving .in pleading guilty, was satisfied with counsel, ant_i was not coerced in anj‘,' way. (i’lea
transcript, pp. 6-7, 15-17). Applicant did not dispute the Stat'e’s recitation of the facts in his case.

This Court finds Applicant failed to ﬁeet his burden of praving plea counsel was;
ineffective. This Court notes plea.counsel made a very strong objection on the recoﬂ to

statements made by law enféfcement, stating she was “outraged at the . . . allegations . . , which

" have nothing to do with the actual charges and which I've riever even heard of before today. I

- would ask that Your Honor just, obviously when we get to that point, sentence him for what he’s

here today for and the actual facts of theése charges.” (Plea transcript,' p. 16). |

This Court finds Applicant unde.r;tood he was .'facing a maximum of -twénty—ﬁve years
and that no-promises had been placed on the record when hg elected to plead guilty. While the
Applicant may have been mﬁappy_ with the sentence .he ulti.mately received, he was advised by
both plea counsel and the plea judge of the sentence ranges fox.' his charges. (Plea transcript, p.
19). 52 Holden v. State, 393 SC 565, 575-76, 713 S.E.2d 611, 617 (2011) (quoting ﬂm'
§ta_té;, 326 5.C. 158, 165, 485 S.E.2d 367, 371 (1997)) (“Wishful thinking regarding sentencing
does not equal a rﬁisapprehension concerning the possible range oi_" sentences; especially where

one acknowledges on the record that one knows the range of sentences and that no promises have

" been made.”). To the extent Applicant’s counsel misinformed Applicant of his possible sentence

prior to the plea, the plea judge advised him of the correct maximum sentences at the plea

' hearing and .the'reb}; cured any misconception. Moorehead v. State, 329 S.C. 329, 333, 496

6




,S.E.Zd 415, 416-417 (1998); Knox v. State, 340 S.C. 81, 86, 530 S.E:2d 887, .889 (2000),

overruled on other grounds by State v. Gentry, 363 S.C. 93, 610 S.E.2d 494 (2005). o

This Court also finds that given thg overwhelminé evidence of guilt and tlie fact the State
was reducing the charge from aitempt'ed 'murder to assault.and battery, first degree—a charge
that aligned with the anticipated trial strategy—Applicant has not met his burden of proving he
would not have pleaded guilty and would have gone to trial. Applicant has therefore failéd to

prove prejudice. See Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20-n.6, 546 S.E.2d 417, 419 n.6 (2001)
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(“Although we have consistently held a deféndant must have a full understanding of the '

consequences of his plea and of the charges agaiﬁst him, . . . the defendant must also demonstrate
prejudice to be entitled to relief on PCR.” (iﬁtemal citations omitted)).

Accordingly, this Court .finds Applicant failed to prove the first prong of the Strickland
test: that plea counsel failed to render 'reasonably effective assistance undc;,r brevailing
professional norms. The Applicant failed to present specific and compelliné evidence that plea
counsel committed either errors or oniissionsl in his r_epxl'esentation of the Applicant. This Céurt
c;)ncludes Api)licant has not met his burden of proving counsel failed to render. reasonably
effective assistance. This Court also finds Applicant has failed to. prove the second proﬁg of
Strickland: that he was prejudiced by plea couﬁsel’s performance. | |

All Other Allegations

As to any and all aliegatioxis that wefe faised m the application or at the hearing in this
matter and not specifically addressed in this Order, this Court finds the A_pplic:'«mt failed to
present any téstimony, afgﬁﬁcnt, or evidence at the heaﬁng rega;ding such allegations..

Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has abandoned any such allegations.

7
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_ CONCLUSION
Based on all the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes Applicant has not established
any constitutional violations or deprivations before or dqring his guilty plea anq sentencing
proceedings, Cou;xsel was not deficient in any manner and Applicant was not prejudiced by

counsel’s representation. Therefore, this PCR application must be denied and dismissed with

- prejudice. .

This -Court advises Applicant that he must file a noiiqe of intent to appeal within thirty

' (30) days from the receipt of this Order if he wants to spcﬁre appropriate appellate review. His

attention is also directed to Rules 203, 206, and 243 of the South Carolina Appéllafe Court Rules
for the appropriate procedures to follow after notice of inteﬁt to appeal has been timely filed.
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That the application for post-conviction relief be denied and -
dismissed with prejudice; and

2. That Applicant be remahded to the custody of the Respondent.

¥ -
AND IT IS SO ORDERED this 3 day of , 2016.

Perfy‘H. éravel)'l . |

Presiding Judge
Eleventh Judicial Circuit




«  ORIGINAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAR?HFJ%N ,)7 IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
)

AMI0: 10
COUNTY OF LEXINGTOEETH ) ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
' A, ARRIGE
Jalon Ted Taylor, CILFE;%A )mC’\)QUCﬁC.-
S.C.D.C. No. 350159, AT '
) C.A. No, 2013-CP-32-1282
Applicant, )
A ) MOTION TO RECONSIDER
V. )
)
State of South Carolina, )
)
Respondent. )
)

This matter comes before the Court by way of an applicatioxi for post-conviction relief
(PCR) filed April 11, 2013. Respondent made its return and motion to dismiss on October 1,
2015. An evidentiary hearing was held on April 18, 2016, at the Lexington County Courthouse,
Applicant was présent and represented by Aimee J. Zmroczek, Esquire. Johanna C. Valenzuela,
Esquire, of the South Carolina Office of the Attorney General represented Respondent.

Applicant; Amanda Jamison, Applicant’s mother; and Kristy Goldberg, Esquire,
Applicant’s plea counsel, testiﬁed at the hearing. Applicant’s sentencing sheets were admitted as
Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, and the Court had before it Applicant’s Record on Appeal, which included
the guilty plea trmlsé:ipt; the Lexington County Clerk of Court records; the South Carolina
Department of Corrections records; the PCR application; and the Return.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Applicant is confined in the South Carolina Depariment of Corrections pursuant to orders

of commitment from the Lexington County Clerk of Court. Applicant was indicted at the March

2011 term of the Lexington County Grand Jury for possession of stolen goods, more than
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$10,000 (2011-GS-32-0641), at the November 2011 term for forgery, less than $10,000 (2011-
GS-32-3399) and attempted murder (2011-GS-32-3506). Kristy Goldberg, Esq., represented
him. On March 15, 2012, Applicant pleaded gunlty as indicted before the Honorable William P.
Keesley to the charges of possession of stolen goods and forgery. Applicant also pleaded guilty
to the lesser included offense of assaqlt and battery, first degrée. Judge Keesley sentenced him
to imprisonment' for a term of five years for possession of stolen goods; five years for forgery;
and ten years for assault and battery, first degree. These sentenées were to be served
consecutively.

A timely notice of appeal was filed and perfected on Applicant’s behalf pursuant to
Anders v. California, 386 U.S. 738 (1967). Wanda H. Carter, Esq., represented Applicant on
appeal. The South Carolina Court of Appeals dismissed the appeal and granted counsel’s motion
to be relieved. State v. Taylor, Op. No. 2013-UP-308 (S.C. Ct. App. filed July 3, 2013). The
Remittitur was issued on July 22, 2013.) An Order of Dismissel was filed on June '1, 2016,and a
filed copy received by the umdersigned attorney on June 7, 2016. This timely motion to
reconsider follows.

Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

The Applicant alleges he received ineffective assistance of counsel. In a PCR action,
“[t]he burden of proof is on the applicant to prove his allegations by a ﬁreponderance of the
evidence.” Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. 385, 389, 570 S.E.2d 172, 174 (2002) (citing SCRCP
71.1(e)).

Applicant testified his attorney told him he would not receive a sentence over ten years if

! Applicant filed this application for PCR while his direct appeal was stiﬁ pending; however, Applicant withdrew his
appeal before Respondent made a motion to dismiss. Respondent then proceeded accordingly.
2



he pleaded guilty.

Amande Jamison, Applicant’s mother, stated she was present at a meeting between
Applicant and his attorney prior to his plea. Ms. Jamison said that after that meeting with counsel
she also believed her son would be getting a ten year sentence. Ms, Jamison admitted she was
not present for any of the prior phone conversations or in person meetings between Applicant
and his counsel.

~ Most importantly and telling in this case was that plea counsel teétiﬁed she met with
Applicant at least eight times during her representation. She also had several telephone
conversations withi Applicant, and she filed discovery motions and reviewed the discovery with
Applicant prior to his plea. .

Counsel testified that she believed the client and his family relied on the statement that
she believed that he would get ten years. There were issues during the plea because it was a
stand-in solicitor. Counsel testified that she believed applicant was being truthful in his reliance
that he would 'receive ten years and that she could understand why this was a benefit he relied on
when entering the plea. Counsel was surprised and upset about law enforcement addressing the
Court during the plea and believed the plea would have gone differently if the assigned
prosecutor had been able to handle the plea instead of having someone step in for him. Counsel
testified she did tell Applicant about the maximum sentences for each charge, but she did not
remember explaining consecutive sentences to him. Finally, while counsel was expecting the
sentence to be ten years and communicated that to Applicant, she never made any promises but it
could be construed by client to bt;. a negotiation from the solicitor and that client’s reliance on it

as a negotiation was understandable.
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Applicant attaches to this case and incorporates in the argument, State v Smith, 413 SC
194 (2015). Applicant states that the basis for this motion to reconsider exists because there was
probative evidence that applicant relied on a plea agreement.

CONCLUSION

Based on all the foregoing, applicant requests this Court to reconsider its ruling.
Respectfully Subhtitted,

—

Al'mee\ 'mroczek, Esq. #77193

AJ.Z. Law Firm, LLC

2003 Lincoln Street (29201)

P.0. Box 11961

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

(t) 803.400.1918 (f) 803.403.8005
aimee@ajzlawfirm.com

Lexington, South Carolina
This 17™ day of June, 2016.
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Smith v. Staté, 413 5.C. 194:(2015)

775 S.E.2d 696

4135.C. 194 v
Supreme Court of South Caralina.

Gerald BS¥E, Respondent,
mmof&uthgémlma, Petitioner.
Appellate Case No. 2014~000951.
No,_g7551.
Heard J1-1|'1e.‘4, DI
Decided July 29, B,

Synopsis

Background: Defendant convicted pursuant-to a guilty
pléa of voluntary manslaughter filed -application for
postconviction relief. The Circuit Conrt, Richland
County, L. Casey Manning, J., denied application.
Defendant appealed. The Court of Appeals, 407 %m 270,
754 $,E.2d 900, reversed and remanded. m petitioned
far-writ of certiorari.

HoldIng: The Supreme Court, Hearn, J., held that o
breach of ‘plea agreement warranted invalidation of
agreement and new trial,

Affirmed.

Pleicones, J., concurred in result only.

West Headnotes (1)

{1}l  Criminal Law
<=Representations, promises, or coercion; plea
‘bargaining

SI8E recommendation of the maximum
sentence was breach. of plea agreement with
defendant, which included Eﬂ%‘e promise to.
remain silent during sentencing, that warranted
invalidation of plea agreement in manslaughter
prosecution. '

Cases that cite this headnote

Attorneys and Law Firms

**696 Attorney General, Alan M. Wilson and Senior
Assistant Attorney’ General, David A. Spencer, both of
Columbia, for petitioner. -

Appellate Deferider, Robert M. Pachak, of Columbia, for-

respondent.
Opinion

Justice HEARN,

*195 Gerald §ffidll was indicted:for murder :and pled
guilty to voluntary manslaughter :in the killing: of his
oxycontini supplier. He was sentenced to tiwenty-four
years' imprisonment after the ERER requésted he receive
the maximom' punishment. Iri this post-conviction relief
(PCR) action, alleges his attorney was deficient for
failing to object to the m&emmm:mdﬁﬁon after the
S5 had previously promised to remain silent during
sentencing, The PCR court denied B application
and the court of appeals reversed. KK v. 407
8%, 270, 754 5.E.2d 900 (Ct.App.2014).

We agree with the court of appeals’ excellent analysis that
the | recommendation of the maximum sentence
was a breach of its agreement with Blith-even where the
B did not get the expected benefit of its bargain, and
that Sl would not have pled guilty had he known the.
solicitor was going to breach the ‘agreement; therefore;
plea counsel’s failure to object constituted ineffective
assistance of counsel. See Thompson v, % 340 %@
112, 531 SE2d 294 (2000) (holding counsel was
ineffective for failing to object when the solicitor
recommended the trinl judge impose the .maximum
sentence in contravention of its agreement to stay sitent);
Jordan v. e 297 B 52, 374 S.E2d 683 (1988)
(same),

We take this opportunity to explain the- proper remedy
under these circumstances. In Jordan, the Court réversed
the PCR court’s dénial of relief and remanded for eithera

new frial or resentencing. Jd. at 52, 374 S.E:2d at 684. In

Thompson, the Court reversed the PCR court’s denial of
relief, and remanded solely for resentencing. 340 Biff. at

WESTLAW © 2016 Thdnﬁéqhiﬁeutérs. No claim to original U.S, Government Works. ' 1
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Smith . State 413 S.C 184 (2015)

7755.E.2d 666

118,531 S.E.2d at 297. Here; presumably following the

_precedent -of Thompson, the court of appeals reversed and

remanded for resentencing. We now: clanﬁl the proper
remedy-is a new trial.! Although. i attomey was
deficient for failing to obJect at the sentencmg hearing,
the- underlymg question is whether would have
entered into. the plea adgreement had he known the §33ie
was going to bieach the agréemient, SeeiJordan, 297 S,
at 54,374 SE2d at 684 (RBEH a defendant alleging
ineffective assistance ‘of counsel. during a guilty plea
*196 must; show “there is a reasonable: probability that,
but for courisel's efrors, he would not have. p]eaded gailty
and would have insisted on **697 going to trial”)
(quoting; Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52; 59, 106 S.Ct. 366,
88 L.Ed.2d 203 (1985)).- Therefore; the proper remedy for
counsel’s ineffective assistance is. invalidation of  the
entire:agreement.

Nevertheless, we affirm the court of appeals’® decision
teversing and remanding for resentencing because neither

Footnotes

party appealed from the mandate portion of the decision.
The court of appeals’ unappealed remand for resentencing.
is thus the law of the case. See Af. Coast: Builders &
Contractors, LLC'v. Lewis, 398 ¥l 323, 329, 730 S.E.2d
282, 285 (2012) (“{Aln. unappealed ruling, right or wrong,
is the law of the case.”).. Therefore; we affirm the decision
of the court of appeals in.toro.

TOAL, C.J., KITTREDGE, J., and Acting Justice JAMES
E. MOORE corcur, PLEICONES J., concurring:in result
only.

All Citations

413 8.C. 194, 775 S.E.2d 696

1 Wenote that Ejiffffli requested only a new trial—not resentencing—during his PCR hearing.

E_nd_of Dacument:

© 2016 Thomson Reutars. No claim to ariginal U.S. Govemment Works.

WESTLAW. © 2016 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. ' 2
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
A ). IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) ) '
) 2013-CP-32-1282
)
)
Jalon Ted Taylor, #350159 )
)
Applicant, )
)
vs ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
. , ‘ )
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent, )
)
I. I am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action..
2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that this
is a proper circumstance of sérvice by mail.
3. I have this day served a copy of the Motion to Strike and Vacate and its attachments in

the above-captioned matter on the following petson by depositing same in the United States mail,
postage prepaid:

Aimee Zmroczek, Esquire
A.J.Z. Law Firm, LLC
PO Box 11961

Columbia, SC 29211

DATED this the 30th day of August, 2016.

Brianna Arnene, Legal Assistant
For Respondent
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) ' ’
) 2013-CP-32-01282
Jalon Ted Taylor, )
S.C.D.C. No. 350159, )
)
Applicant, )
) » .
\2 ) RETURN TO MOTION TO RECONSIDER
)
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent. )
)

This matter comes before the Court by way of an application for post-conviction relief
(PCR) filed April il, 2013. Respondent made its return on or about September 30, 2015. An
evidentiary hearing was held on April 18, 2016, at the Lexington County Courthduse. Applicant
was present and represented by Aimee Zmroczek, Esquire, Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney
General Johanna C. Valenzuela represented Respondent. The Final Order denying Applicant’s
relief was filed on August 12, 2016, Applicant ;nade a Motion to Reconsider, which was denied
by the Court in an order filed on August 17, 2016. Respondent moved to vacate the order
pursuant to Rule 5 of the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procédure. In an order filed October 31,
2016, the Court rescinded its prior order, allowed time for both parties to submit memorandums,
and ordered that Applicant’s renewed motion to reconsider be considered timely. Applicant filed
his motion to reconsider on or about November 16, 2016, and Respondent received it on or about

November 21, 2016. This Return follows.

Page10f3



ARGUMENT
Applicant has failed to set forth any sufficient reasons to persuade this Court to alter or

amend the final order. Applicant argues State v. Smith, 413 S.C. 194, 775 S.E.2d 696 (2015),

should be applied in this case and that “there was probative evidence that applicant relied on a
plea agreement.” In Smith, the agreement between the State and the defendant was that the State
would remain silent on sentencing. Smith, 413 S.C. at 195, 775 S.E.2d at 696. When the State
asked for the maximum sentence, defense counsel did not object. Id.

In this case, the agreement with the State was to dismiss several charges, reduce the
attempted murder charge to assault and battery, first degree, and plead to the remaining charges
with no recommendation and no agreement on sentencing, (Order of Dismissal, p. 5), which is
different than the agreement in Smith where the State agreed to remain silent on sentencing,
Here, after law enforcement addressed the Court and asked for the maximum, the Court asked
Applicant if “[o]ther than what’s on the record, . . . , has anyone promised you anything to get

you to plead?” and Applicant answered “[n]o, sir.” (Record on Appeal, p. 16, 1. 23 —p. 17,1.1.)

143

Furthermore, unlike the defense attorney in Smith, who remained silent when the State requested

the maximum sentence, plea counsel here “made a very strong objection on the record to
statements made by law enforcement.” (Order of Dismissal, p. 6.)

Applicant has not set forth any sufficient grounds to persuade this Court to alter or amend
the judgment. Respondent submits ofal argument would not aid in the reconsideration of the
original judgment as the Order of Dismissal in this case fully comports with the requirements of

Rule 52(a), SCRCP.

Page 20of3
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CONCLUSION
WHEREFORE, having made its Return to Applicant’s Rule 59(c) Motion to
Reconsider, Respondent requests that the motion be denied and dismissed.

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attomey General

ROBERT BOLCHOZ
Chief Deputy Attorney General

JOHANNA C. VALENZUELA
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

P.O. Box 11549
Columbia, S.C. 29211

By: ' M@/ 8l

Columbia, South Carolina Attgrneys for the Respondent’ O

5 Diagemredotr, 2016
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA. )
- ) IN'THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON )
)
' » ) 2013-CP-32-1282
JALON T. TAYLOR,#350159, )
)
Applicant, )
)
Vs )] AFFIDAVIT-QF SERVICE BY MAIL.
) J
STATE.OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent. )
)
1. 1 am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.
2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the. State.of South Carolina and that this is
~a proper.circumstance of service by mail.
3. I have this day served a copy of the Return to Motion to Reconsider on the above-captioned

miatter on the following person by email and by depositing same in the-United States mail, postage
prepaid:

Aimee J. Zmroczek, Esquire
AJ.Z. Law Firm, LLC

O Box 11961

Columbia, SC 29211

DATED this 5" day of December, 2016.

hanna C. Valenzuela Attom_ y
For Respondent



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA F IR L, E @THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
No. e

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON 2013-CP-32-01282 °
Jalon Ted Taylor, i J“,' 2‘))’ P ]23 25
S.C.D.C. #350159 : ' )
Applicant, ) r
' o COUNTY OF Lexinaropn. -
vS. LE)’;:ﬁé M. COMERYCLERk oF c%ug-r ORDER
] ; TON COUNT JUDICIAL G -
. 205 EAST MAIN STRggT NTER
State of South Carolina, LEXINGTON, 8¢ 29079.3494
. _ )
Respondent. )
: )

This matter comes before the Court upon Apphcant’s Motion to Reconsider the Order

dismissing his Post-Conthton Rehef clalm ﬁled by and through counsel on November 1 8
.2016. This Motion was allowed at this date pursuant 6 the Court's Order of Octoher 31, 2016. :
The State responded with its t{eturn to Motioh to Reconsider on or about bwember 7, 2016.

In his Motion, Applicant has cited Smith v. South Carolina, 775 S.E.Zd 696 (S.C. 2015),

as authority for why the Court should reconsider its Order of June 1, 2016. However, there are
" factual differences between Smith and Applicant"s cases that put the current matter outside of the
scope of Smith. _ .

In Smith, the South Carolina Supreme Court found .that Smith’s counsel was irteffective
for failing to object when the State bad agreed to remain silent a5 far as a sentencing |
recommendation during Smith’s guilty plea and instead made a recommendation to the court. In
the Applicant’s case, the guilty plea was also to be without negotiatioh or recommendation by
the State. Applicant and his plea counsel had hoped for a sentence of ten years, but plea counsel
matle it cleer to Applicant that this was not promised and reviewed the possible sentences with
Applicant. At the guilty plea, the plea solicitor remained silent as to a recommendation. When

the law enforcement officer involved in the case spoke, he made disparaging remarks about




applicarit and asked for the maximum sentence. In contrast to the facts in Smith, Applicant’s

plea counsel strongly objected to the officer’s statements at this point in the plea. Plea counsel’s

of counsel as set fortl} in Smith.

objection to the officer’s statements take this matter outside of the scope of ineffective assistance

Therefore, after fully considering said Motion, this Court finds no need for oral argiment
in this maﬁér, and the Motion to Reconsider is DENIED;

AND IT IS SO ORDERED!

.@‘ 2 (/'vl’{f/_ , South Carolina

: January./g , 2017

a

/Perry H. Gravely
Presiding Judge
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